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NOTICE OF FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company
will be held at Dewan Perdana, Bukit Kiara Equestrian & Country Resort, Jalan Bukit Kiara, off
Jalan Damansara, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 27 February 2019, at 10.30 a.m. for the
following purposes:AGENDA
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2018
together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Please refer to
Explanatory Note (a)

2.

To declare a first and final single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 August 2018.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of up to RM350,000.00 for the period commencing
from the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting until the next Annual General
Meeting in the year 2020.

Ordinary Resolution 2

4.

To approve the payment of Directors’ allowances of up to RM30,000.00 for the period
commencing from the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting until the next Annual
General Meeting in the year 2020.

Ordinary Resolution 3

5.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 126 of the Company’s
Constitution and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:

6.

i.

Ir. Leong Chee Kian

Ordinary Resolution 4

ii.

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

Ordinary Resolution 5

To re-appoint Messrs BDO as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 6

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following Resolutions:7.

(A)

Authority to issue shares
“THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 2016, Constitution of the Company and
approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory bodies where such approvals shall
be necessary, the Directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered pursuant
to Section 75 of the Companies Act, 2016 to allot and issue shares in the Company
at any time until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such
terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute
discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant
to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the issued capital for the time being of the
Company and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval
for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.”

Ordinary Resolution 7
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(B)

Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related
Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature

Ordinary Resolution 8

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Company and/or its subsidiary
companies to renew the mandate from the shareholders of the Company for the
Company and/or its subsidiary companies to enter into and give effect to Recurrent
Related Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature with specified classes of the
Related Parties as stated in Part B of the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 December
2018 (“Circular”) which are necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations in the
ordinary course of business on terms not more favourable to the Related Parties than
those generally available to the public and not detrimental to minority shareholders of
the Company AND THAT, such approval shall continue to be in force until:a.

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company
following the general meeting at which such mandate was passed, at which
time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the AGM, the authority is
renewed; or

b.

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company after
the date is required to be held pursuant to Sections 340(1) and 340(2) of the
Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act”) (but shall not extend to such extension as may
be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or

c.

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting,

whichever is the earlier, and disclosure will be made in the annual report of the
aggregate value on the transactions conducted during the financial year pursuant to
the shareholders’ mandate;
AND FURTHER THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to complete and do
all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may be required) as
they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to this resolution.”
(C)

Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back
“THAT subject to the Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act”), rules, regulations and orders
made pursuant to the Act, provisions of the Company’s Constitution, the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and any other
relevant authorities, the Company be and is hereby authorised to purchase such
amount of ordinary shares in the Company as may be determined by the Directors
of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and
conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company
PROVIDED THAT:a.

the aggregate number of ordinary shares in the Company which may be
purchased and/or held by the Company shall not exceed ten per cent (10%)
of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company as quoted on Bursa
Securities as at the point of purchase;

b.

the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of
purchasing the shares shall not exceed the Company’s latest audited retained
profits and/or share premium account;

Ordinary Resolution 9
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c.

the authority conferred by this resolution will commence immediately upon
passing of this ordinary resolution and will continue to be in force until:i.

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company following the general meeting at which this resolution was
passed at which time it shall lapse unless by an ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authority is renewed, either unconditionally
or subject to conditions; or

ii.

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is
required by law to be held; or

iii.

revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting,

whichever occurs first.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to
cancel all the shares or any part thereof so purchased or to retain all the shares
so purchased as treasury shares (of which may be distributed as dividends
to shareholders and/or resold on Bursa Securities and/or subsequently
cancelled), or to retain part of the shares so purchased as treasury shares and
cancel the remainder, and in any other manner as prescribed by the Act, rules,
regulations and orders made pursuant to the Act, the Listing Requirements of
Bursa Securities and any other relevant authorities for the time being in force,
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take
all such steps as are necessary or expedient to implement, finalise or to effect
the aforesaid share buy-back with full powers to assent to any conditions,
modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required or imposed by
the relevant authorities and to do all such acts and things (including executing
all documents) as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the best interest
of the Company.”
(D)

Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director
- Datuk Alias Bin Ali

Ordinary Resolution 10

“THAT pursuant to Practice 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
2017, Datuk Alias Bin Ali who has served the Board as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company for a term of twelve (12) years since 5 January 2007 be and is
hereby retained as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
(E)

Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director
- Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
“THAT pursuant to Practice 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
2017, Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron who has served the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a term of ten (10) years since 15 January
2009 be and is hereby retained as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company.”

Ordinary Resolution 11
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(F)

Proposed Adoption of New Constitution of the Company (“Proposed Adoption of
New Constitution”)

Special Resolution 1

“THAT the existing Company’s Constitution be deleted in its entirety and that the new
Constitution as set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 December 2018 be
and is hereby adopted as the new Constitution of the Company.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all
such acts and things as necessary and/or expedient in order to give full effect to the
Proposed Adoption of New Constitution with full power to assent to any conditions,
modifications, and/or amendments as may be required by any relevant authorities.”
ANY OTHER BUSINESS:
8.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance
with the Company’s Constitution and the Companies Act, 2016.

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of
the Company, the first and final single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share for the financial year ended 31 August 2018,
if approved, will be payable on 19 March 2019 to Depositors registered in the Record of Depositors at the close of business
on 11 March 2019.
A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:
a.

Shares transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 11 March 2019 in respect of ordinary transfers; and

b.

Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,

CHAN CHEE YEAN (MAICSA 7029178)
WONG YOUN KIM (MAICSA 7018778)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
28 December 2018
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NOTES:
1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting may appoint up to two (2) proxies (or being a
corporate member, a corporate representative) to attend
and vote in his/her stead. A proxy may but need not be a
member of the Company.

2.

Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the
appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the
proportions of his/her shareholdings to be represented by
each proxy.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy in the case of an
individual shall be signed by the appointer or his/her
attorney or in the case of a corporation executed under its
common seal or signed on behalf of the corporation by its
attorney or by an officer duly authorised.

4.

5.

b.

Authority to issue shares
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7 if passed, will
give the Directors of the Company, from the date of
the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting, the authority
to allot and issue shares of up to 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the time of the issue
for such purposes as the Directors consider would
be in the interest of the Company. This authority,
unless revoked or varied by the shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting, will expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.
The Company did not issue any shares pursuant
to Section 75 of the Companies Act, 2016 under
the general authority which was approved at the
Thirteenth Annual General Meeting held on 27
February 2018 and which will lapse at the conclusion
of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting to be held
on 27 February 2019.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised
nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company
for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account
(“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities
Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, there is no limit
to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised
nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account
it holds.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed
or executed must be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company at No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa, 53200 Kuala
Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time appointed
for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

6.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose
names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 21
February 2019 shall be eligible to attend the meeting or
appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

7.

EXPLANATORY NOTES:a.

Item 1 of the Agenda
Audited Financial Statements for financial year
ended 31 August 2018.
The Audited Financial Statements under Agenda 1 are
meant for discussion only, as the provision of Section
340(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2016 does not require
shareholders’ approval. Hence, this Agenda will not
be put forward for voting.

Item 8(A) of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 7

A renewal of this authority is being sought at the
Fourteenth Annual General Meeting to provide
flexibility to the Company to undertake future
possible fund raising activities, including but not
limited to further placement of shares for purpose
of funding future investments, working capital and/
or acquisitions without having to convene another
general meeting.
c.

Item 8(B) of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 8
Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’
Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transaction
of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Resolution 8 is intended to enable the
Company and its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent
related party transactions of a revenue or trading
nature which are necessary for the Company’s dayto-day operations to facilitate transactions in the
normal course of business of the Company with the
specified classes of related parties, provided that
they are carried out on an arms’ length basis and on
normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to
the shareholders on terms not more favourable to the
related parties than those generally available to the
public and are not to the detriment of the minority
shareholders of the Company.
Please refer to Part B of the Circular to Shareholders
dated 28 December 2018, which is circulated together
with this Annual Report for further information.
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d.

Item 8(C) of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 9

b.

Their length of services on the Board of twelve
(12) years and ten (10) years do not in any way
interfere with their exercise of objective judgement
or their ability to act in the best interest of the
Company and the Group. In fact, they are familiar
with the Group’s business operations and have
always actively participated in Board and Board
Committee discussions and have continuously
provided an independent view to the Board; and

c.

They have exercised due care during their tenures
as Independent Director of the Company and
have discharged their duties with reasonable
skill and competence, bringing independent
judgement into the decision making of the Board
and in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders.

Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share BuyBack
The proposed Resolution 9 is intended to allow the
Company to purchase its own shares up to 10% of the
total issue and paid-up share capital of the Company
at any time within the time period stipulated in the
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
Please refer to Part C of the Statement to Shareholders
dated 28 December 2018, which is circulated together
with this Annual Report for further information.
e.

Item 8(D) & Item 8(E) of the Agenda – Ordinary
Resolutions 10 & 11
Proposed Retention of Independent Non-Executive
Directors
- Datuk Alias Bin Ali
- Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
The Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of Datuk Alias Bin Ali and Dato’ Prof.
Dr. Sudin Bin Haron who have served as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a term
of twelve (12) years and ten (10) years respectively
and recommended them to continue to act as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on the following justifications :
a

Datuk Alias Bin Ali and Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin
Haron have fulfilled the criteria stated under the
definition of Independent Director as defined
in the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and they would be able to
provide proper check and balance thus bringing
an element of objectivity to the Board;

f.

Item 8(F) of the Agenda – Special Resolution 1
Proposed Adoption of New Constitution of the
Company
The proposed Special Resolution 1, if passed,
will align the Constitution of the Company with the
Companies Act, 2016 which came into force on 31
January 2017, the updated provision of the Main
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and the prevailing laws, guidelines
or requirements of the relevant authorities, to render
greater clarity and consistency throughout as well as
to enhance administrative efficiency.
Further details relating to this proposed resolution are
set out in the Part A of the Circular to Shareholders
dated 28 December 2018, which was circulated
together with this Annual Report.

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING THE NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
1.

The Directors who are standing for re-election at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company pursuant to
Article 126 of the Constitution of the Company are:
i.
ii.

Ir. Leong Chee Kian
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

The details of the above Directors seeking re-election are set out in the Board of Directors’ Profile as disclosed on page
11 and page 13 of this Annual Report.
2.

The details of the above Directors’ interest in the securities of the Company are stated on page 35 of this Annual Report.

3.

The statement relating to the general mandate for authority to issue shares is set out in the Explanatory Notes to the Notice
of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting on page 6 of this Annual Report.
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100%

100%

BAYU MELATI SDN BHD

PEMBINAAN KERY SDN BHD

(415653-V)

(289253-H)

100%

100%

MELATI EHSAN
CONSOLIDATED SDN BHD

MELATI EHSAN TRADING
SDN BHD

(364860-T)

(763968-V)

100%

100%

MELATI EHSAN CAPITAL
SDN BHD

ASAS JIWA SDN BHD
(761351-A)

(851808-D)

49%
B.H.O. MELATI SDN BHD
(1071307-H)
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Executive Directors cum Key Senior Management

TAN SRI DATO’ YAP SUAN CHEE
Executive
Chairman
Malaysian
Aged 66
Male

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee was appointed
to the Board of Directors of the Company on
5 January 2007. He was re-designation as the
Executive Chairman of the Company with effect
from 28 March 2017.
He is the founder of the Melati Ehsan Holdings
Berhad Group and has over 25 years of working
experience in the construction and property
development industry. He has been involved
in numerous successful construction projects
such as the French Embassy at Kuala Lumpur
and the Football Association of Selangor’s
Business Avenue. Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan
Chee’s guidance, foresight, leadership and
prudent management have proven invaluable
in steering the Group to its success todate. He

also sits on the Board of some of the subsidiary
companies of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad
and several other private limited companies.
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee does not hold any
directorship in any other public corporation.
His spouse, Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, is
a substantial shareholder. Save as disclosed
above, Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee does not
have any family relationship with any director
and/or substantial shareholder of the Company.
He does not have any conflict of interest with the
Company other than the recurrent transactions
of revenue or trading nature which are necessary
for the Company’s day-to-day operations. He
has no convictions for any offences within the
past 5 years.

RADZULAI BIN YAHAYA
Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 59
Male

Radzulai Bin Yahaya was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 29
January 2007.
He also sits on the Board of Bayu Melati Sdn.
Bhd., Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd., Melati Ehsan
Trading Sdn. Bhd., Melati Ehsan Consolidated
Sdn. Bhd., Melati Ehsan Capital Sdn. Bhd.,
Asas Jiwa Sdn. Bhd. and has been with the
Group for more than 18 years. Prior to joining
the Group, he was attached with Jabatan Kerja
Raya Malaysia as a technician from 1986 to
1992 where he was responsible for maintaining
the water supply infrastructures. In total, he

has more than 20 years experience in the
construction industry.
Radzulai Bin Yahaya does not hold any
directorship in any other public corporation.
He does not have any family relationship with
any director and/or substantial shareholder of
the Company, neither does he have any conflict
of interest with the Company other than the
recurrent transactions of revenue or trading
nature which are necessary for the Company’s
day-to-day operations. He has no convictions
for any offences within the past 5 years.
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Executive Directors cum Key Senior Management

LIM TONG HEE
Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 44
Male

Lim Tong Hee was appointed an Executive
Director of the Company on 29 January 2007.
He is the Finance Director of the Group and has
been with the Group since 2002. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.
He obtained his Bachelor of Accountancy from
the University of Glasgow, United Kingdom in
1997. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountant and a member
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr
Lim is in charge of the accounting and finance
functions of the Group. He began his career as
an Executive of performance for management
and monitoring with a management consultant
firm in 1997. Subsequently, he joined a medium
public accounting firm in 1999 as an Audit

Associate. Mr Lim was attached to a well-known
public accounting firm as an Audit Senior from
2000 to 2002, in charge of a wide portfolio of
clients in diversified industries. His experiences
include audit assurance, financial and corporate
advisory, due diligence review and as reporting
accountants to public listed corporations and
private companies. In total, he has more than
15 years experience in reviewing and managing
accounts and financial matters.
Lim Tong Hee does not hold any directorship
in any other public corporation. He does not
have any family relationship with any director
and/or substantial shareholder of the Company,
neither does he have any conflict of interest
with the Company. He has no convictions for
any offences within the past 5 years.

IR. LEONG CHEE KIAN
Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 48
Male

Ir. Leong Chee Kian was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 29
December 2015. Currently, he is the Technical
Director of the Group in charge of design,
planning and construction projects undertaken
by the Group.
Ir. Leong Chee Kian holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Hons) in Civil Engineering from
Universiti Sains Malaysia and is a professional
engineer registered with the Board of Engineers
of Malaysia. He is also a member of the
Institution of Engineers of Malaysia. He has
20 years of experience in the construction
and property industry. He started his career
as a design engineer with Berakan Jurutera
Perunding Sdn Bhd in 1995. Subsequently,

he joined Perunding Sentral as an Associate
Director from 2000 - 2004, in charge of design
of projects undertaken by the company. Prior to
joining Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad, Ir. Leong
managed his own consultancy company. He has
been actively involved in the design, planning
and construction of various commercial,
industrial and residential projects.
Ir. Leong Chee Kian does not hold any
directorship in any other public corporation.
He does not have any family relationship with
any director and/or substantial shareholder
of the Company, neither does he have any
conflict of interest with the Company. He has
no convictions for any offences within the past
5 years.
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Independent and Non-Executive Directors

DATO’ MOHD ZAIN BIN YAHYA
Independent
Non-Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 77
Male

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya was appointed to
the Board of Directors of the Company on 29
January 2007. His position is independent and
non-executive. He is the Chairman of the Audit
and Nomination Committees and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has been a Director of Pembinaan Kery Sdn.
Bhd. since 1 September 1998. Prior to joining
the Group, he was attached with the Rubber
Industry Small Holders Development Authority
(“RISDA”) from 1969 to 1996. He joined
RISDA as an administrative officer and was
subsequently promoted to Director General in

1982 where he was responsible for the overall
operations of RISDA. Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin
Yahya has more than 25 years of experience in
business management. He retired from RISDA
in 1996 and then joined the Group.
Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya does not hold any
directorship in any other public corporation.
He does not have any family relationship with
any director and/or substantial shareholder
of the Company, neither does he have any
conflict of interest with the Company. He has
no convictions for any offences within the past
5 years.

DATUK ALIAS BIN ALI
Independent
Non-Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 70
Male

Datuk Alias Bin Ali was appointed to the Board
of Directors of the Company on 5 January
2007. His position is non-executive and he is
an Independent Director. He is also a member
of the Audit and Nomination Committees of the
Company.
He holds a Masters in Business Management
from the Asian Institute of Management,
Philippines and a Bachelors Degree in
Economics from the University of Malaya. He
attended the London Executive Program at the
London Business School in 1984. Datuk Alias
Bin Ali was the former Secretary General of
the Ministry of Health when he retired in March
2004. He has more than 30 year’s experience in
the civil service, having been in the government

sector since 1970. He has held various positions,
including
Deputy
Director
(Operations,
Training), Public Services Department; Director
of Industrial Development Division, Ministry
of International Trade and Industry; and the
Deputy Secretary General (Cabinet), Prime
Minister’s Department. He served as a member
of the Securities Commission from 10 June
2004 to January 2006.
Datuk Alias Bin Ali does not have any family
relationship with any director and/or substantial
shareholder of the Company, neither does he
have any conflict of interest with the Company.
He has no convictions for any offences within
the past 5 years.
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Directors’ Profile

Independent and Non-Executive Directors

DATO’ PROF. DR. SUDIN BIN HARON
Independent
Non-Executive
Director
Malaysian
Aged 64
Male

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron was appointed
to the Board of Directors of the Company on
15 January 2009. His position is non-executive
and he is an Independent Director. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees of the Company.
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron is one of the
world renowned scholars in Islamic banking
and finance, as well as business management.
Currently he is the President of Kuala Lumpur
Business School. He was previously with the
Northern University of Malaysia and served as
dean of the School of Management, director
of the Entrepreneurial Development Institute,
founding dean of the Faculty of Finance and
Banking, and director of the Research and
Consultancy Center. Prior to becoming an
academician, he worked for more than 13
years with one of the local banks in Malaysia.
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron has published
10 books and 60 referred articles in the areas

ECER Seksyen 3E1

of Islamic and conventional banking, small
business and entrepreneurship, general
management and marketing. He has presented
more than 70 papers in international seminars
and conferences. He had in many occasions
rendered his experience and expertise as
consultant to local and international business
organizations. He was the brain behind the
establishment of the International Center for
Education in Islamic Finance (INCEIF) of the
Central Bank of Malaysia and served a year as
the Deputy Chief Executive before embarking
in his own business. However, Dato’ Prof. Dr.
Sudin Bin Haron’s academic knowledge and
expertise are still being sought after by many.
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron does not have
any family relationship with any director and/
or substantial shareholder of the Company,
neither does he have any conflict of interest
with the Company. He has no convictions for
any offences within the past 5 years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATING AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW
The construction and property development segment continued to be
challenging as a whole and for Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (“Melati
Ehsan” or “the Group”) during the last financial year. The cautious
business environment has rendered lower consumer sentiment, tighter
bank lending requirements and moderation of economic growth.

Construction division of the Group remains the key contributor to the Group’s turnover and
profit. The construction contract for Perumahan Penjawat Awam Malaysia (PPAM) and
other associated works consisting of 2 blocks of 208 units for block A and 465 units
for block B (a total of 673 units) has achieved approximately 70% completion with
structure works up to the top floor. We are targeting to achieve 70% QLASSIC rating
for this project. QLASSIC stands for Quality Assessment System in Construction
which is developed by the Malaysia Construction Industry Development Board
(CIDB). QLASSIC evaluates the quality of construction work through methods
of inspection, sampling and field testing and the system assesses all the
aspects of construction - architectural, mechanical, external and structural.
A topping-off ceremony of the PPAM project was held on 13 November
2018 officiated by Y.B. Puan Hajah Zuraida Binti Kamaruddin, Minsiter
of Housing and Local Government and Y.B. Tuan Haji Khalid Bin Abd.
Samad, Minister of Federal Territories as the joint guests of honour.
The gracious presence of the ministers, senior government officers,
corporate leaders, business associates and media made the
ceremony a remarkable event.
The Group’s construction works of a 41 storey corporate
office tower in Jalan Conlay, Kuala Lumpur City Centre for
Pelaburan Hartanah Berhad (PHB) is mowing well with
piling works completed. Super structure works have
been mobilised and have commenced. This project is
located in the Kuala Lumpur City Centre and due to
traffic issues, most of the casting and concreting
works are carried out after office hours at night.
Other site non-technical issues such as noise
and dust controls were designed by us and
are operated to reduce the overall impact of
the built-up surroundings. We are focusing
to increase the efficiency of resource
use - energy, water, and materials
while reducing building impact on
human health and the environment
during the building’s lifecycle,
through better siting, design,
construction,
operation,
maintenance and removal.
Thus, we are aiming for
Green Buildings Index Gold.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Topping-Off
Ceremony of Perumahan
Penjawat Awam Malaysia
(Ppam) Bayu Andaman,
Bandar Sentul Utama
Sentul, Kuala Lumpur on
13 November 2018.

OPERATING AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)
The road works in the East Coast Economic Region, Central
Spine Road, Seksyen 3E1 : Mentara to Merapoh, is progressing
as planned. As at the date of this report, the construction
works have achieved with approximately 70% completion, all
levelling and earthworks having been completed. Currently,
the project team is focusing on crusher run laying and bridge
works such as pier plus crosshead and the laying of precast
beams. The bridge is a 8-span bridge crossing over a road,
railway track and river.
During the year under review, the Group focused on marketing
those property units of completed development schemes.
Nevertheless, the Group is continuing looking for new lands
for future development and expansion to meet the peoples’
choices of homes at their different stages of life and respond
to the ever changing market trends. With an established
good track record and profile, the Group also continues to
participate in tendering of construction jobs.

Bayu Melati Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company had on 19 September 2018, vide a letter of
award issued by Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn Bhd (“Letter of
Award”), been appointed as the main/turnkey contractor
for the development on the land held under PN 109367, Lot
72699, Seksyen 40, Bandar Petaling Jaya, Daerah Petaling
(“Project”). The Project is to be completed within a period of
Eighty-Four (84) months from the commencement date of the
Project. The appointment of Bayu Melati Sdn Bhd as main/
turnkey contractor is by virtue of the Privatisation Agreement
dated 19 September 2018 entered into between Perbadanan
Kemajuan Negeri Selangor and Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn Bhd.
The development entails the construction and completion of
shops, commercials lots and service apartments. The scope
of work shall include appointment of registered consultants,
designing, securing of all necessary authorities permits and
approvals and the paying of all charges, levies and taxes,
provision of all skilled labour, specified or approved materials,
transportation, tools, equipment, machineries including all
necessary temporary and permanent safety measures and
works for the design, execution and completion of the Project.
The final price of the Letter of Award shall be confirmed after
parties commence exclusive discussion and negotiations.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Group recorded a revenue of RM287.85 million and profit
before tax of RM3.20 million in the financial year ended 31
August 2018. This represent a 71.29% increase in revenue as
compared to the previous financial year of RM168.00 million.
However, profit before tax of the Group decreased by 18.09%
in the current financial year despite the increase in revenue.
This was due mainly to the decrease in the gross profit margin.
The revenue recorded in the current financial year was mainly
attributed from the construction projects of road works in the
East Coast Economic Region (“ECER”), office tower at Jalan
Conlay, Kuala Lumpur City Centre and Perumahan Penjawat
Awam Malaysia (“PPAM”) project in Sentul, Kuala Lumpur. The
Group has no new property launches during the financial year
due to the soft property market environment and focusing to
clear unsold stock.
The Group’s property segment recorded a revenue of
RM82.639 million and a loss before tax of RM1.722 million as
compared to the preceding year revenue of RM6.483 million
and loss before tax RM1.957 million. The significant surge
in revenue was due mainly to inventories of property units
sold during the financial year. However, this segment still
maintained a loss due to the liquidated damages incurred and
paid during the year.
For the financial year under review, our gearing ratio to total
equity remained low at 7.27%, while shareholders’ funds
stood at RM211.07 million.

DIVIDEND
Melati Ehsan continue to take a balanced approach on dividend
payout, balancing between paying returns to shareholders
and at the same time, fulfilling the Group’s working capital
requirements and reaping potential investment opportunities
for future growth.
Based upon the operating performance, the Board of
Directors is pleased to recommend the payment of a first and
final single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share (2017:
single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share), amounting
to RM1,191,691 with respect of the financial year ended 31
August 2018, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (673293-X)
Annual Report 2018

17
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MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
After the general elections, the new Government announced
numerous prudent measures to tackle the country’s debt level,
including reviewing and scrapping large infrastructure projects
that bring no economic benefit to the nation. The costcutting pursuit is largely aimed at streamlining the national
expenditure and improving the federal government’s fiscal
health. Nevertheless, the secured and on-going construction
works of the Company will continue to contribute positively to
the Group’s revenue and profitability despite lesser lucrative
contracts dished out by the new Government in the near term.
Reduction of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) from 6% to
0% (i.e. the 3 month tax holiday period) increased consumers’
willingness to spend rendering turnover to pick up in areas
of affected merchandise and thereby boosting the local
commercial property market. The reintroduction of the Sales
and Services Tax (SST) in September is expected to result in
lower prices of goods in general. The measures are likely to
stimulate purchasing power and consumption which will yield
a multiplier effect in the economy and eventually spur business
activities domestically.
The Government also took steps to consolidate various
housing agencies under the Ministry of Housing and Local
Government. This is the right path and is welcomed by the
industry stakeholders as this will facilitate planning, regulatory
control and avoid overlapping in the Government housing
policy. Practical and sound policies coupled with effective and
fair implementation and enforcement from the authorities are
pertinent in improving the overall property market.
The outlook for Malaysia appears to be promising as the
new Government sets to work to address some issues and
problems that have held back Malaysia’s long-term prospects
and deterred foreign investment. There is better clarity in
policy and improving sentiments with growth momentum
as the Government is committed to steering the economy
towards inclusive growth, benefiting all Malaysians, while
carefully dealing with heightening uncertainties in the global

environment. In view of this, the market is poised for growth
and this will return Malaysia to the radar of international
investors as Malaysia has always been an investor-friendly
nation. With a better economic outlook for 2019 brought about
by the Government’s initiative to uplift the people wellbeing,
we hope to see an increase in the property and construction
activities.
Based upon the above, the outlook of the local construction
sector is promising and will benefit industry players. For the
property development segment, developers remain cautiously
optimistic on the current market situation and we expect that
there will be a period of adjustment and consolidation to clear
existing property stock before an uptrend can be seen. The
present challenging conditions in the property segment was
due mainly to the mismatch of housing demand and supply
in the market. Nevertheless, amid challenges in the local
property sector, the market still offers pockets of opportunity
for developers to replenish their land bank in anticipation
of a recovery and, due to a clearer economic and political
direction, certain developers may still implement projects that
they had planned or announced earlier. We expect a positive
interest from potential buyers especially in the Klang Valley
when it comes to affordable pricing projects or mid-range
products. Development schemes with the right mix of factors
that include location, lifestyle concept, pricing and marketing
strategies will perform reasonably well and attract buyers.
The Board of Directors is optimistic about the Group’s ability
to continue to achieve a satisfactory performance for the
financial year ending 31 August 2019.

TAN SRI DATO’ YAP SUAN CHEE
Executive Chairman
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GROUP FINANCIAL REVIEW
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance to Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”), listed issuers are
required to ensure that its annual report contains a Sustainability Statement for
financial years ended on or after 31 December 2017. On this note, the Board is
pleased to share with the shareholders of the principles and initiatives which the
Group has adopted and embarked on its sustainable initiatives.

At Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (“MEHB”), we strive to uphold our corporate values within the core guiding principles of
professionalism, integrity and commitment. One of our key corporate values is to ensure sustainability by treating our community
and environment fairly in our pursuit of our corporate vision to be a leader in providing total solutions in construction and project
management industries.

OUR KEY CORPORATE VALUES

Accountability

We approach our
business in a socially
responsible way

Reliability

We hold ourselves to
the highest standards
and efficiency without
compromise

Timeliness

We honour and
take great care to
complete our projects
in a timely manner

Innovation

We strive to be
progressively creative
while improving our
work methodologies

Sustainability

We are fair in treating
our community and
environment

The Board considers its sustainability initiatives with reference to the seventeen (17) global sustainable development goals set by
the United Nations General Assembly in 2015. Two of these seventeen (17) sustainability goals that MEHB focuses presently are:
Goal 8 : Decent Work and Economic Growth; and
Goal 11 : Sustainability Cities and Communities.
As part of the material assessment, management has identified the past and existing initiatives undertaken by the Group with
respect to these Goals. The illustrations of these initiatives are summarised in the table below:

Goals
Decent
Work and
Economic
Growth

Goals
Description
Promote
inclusive and
sustainable
economic
growth,
full and
productive
employment
and decent
work for all

MEHB’s Initiatives
• MEHB offers opportunities to employees to build their potential under a safe, conducive and
work-life balanced environments
• Our staff is recognised as our most important asset, and thus we provide opportunities of
career advancement to our staff as our gesture of acknowledgement of their hard work,
dedication, loyalty and honesty demonstrated during their course of employment. Many of
our staff members has worked with us for a long time, and in many ways, are akin to family.
A few members of the staff started their career from entry-level positions and have climbed
their way up rising to become members of the senior management team and directors of the
MEHB group of companies.
• Annual dinners, celebrations and trips are just the norm and culture in MEHB. The Group
practices work-life balance through structured office hours.
• Recently, MEHB achieved 350,000 safe man-hours for our construction projects at Kuala
Lumpur. A ceremony of awards presentation was held to celebrate this achievement of
healthy and safe working environment.
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Goals
Sustainable
Cities and
Communities

Goals
Description
Make Cities
and Human
Settlements
Inclusive,
Safe,
Resilient and
Sustainable

MEHB’s Initiatives
• One way of making cities safe and sustainable means ensuring access to safe and affordable
housing, and upgrading slum settlements.
• Program Perumahan Rakyat (“PPR”) or the People's Housing Program is a Malaysian
government program for relocation of squatters and meeting the needs of housing for the
lower income group. To this end, MEHB has undertaken several of these housing projects
under this scheme.
Project Name

Description of Project

Status

PPR Kampung
Hassan, Hulu
Selangor

This project comprises 300 units of low-cost terrace Completed
houses in Hulu Selangor, Selangor with the size of 1200 in 2013
sq.ft per unit.

PPR Seri Aman

The project was located in Kepong, Kuala Lumpur Completed
comprising 1600 units of low-cost apartments. Each unit in 2015
comes with 3 rooms and make up a total of approximately
700 sq.ft.

PPR Sentul

The project was located in Sentul, Kuala Lumpur Completed
comprising 500 units of low-cost apartments. Each unit in 2017
comes with 3 rooms and make up a total of approximately
700 sq.ft.

Bayu Andaman
PPAM

The project is comprised of 673 units of apartments Ongoing
in Sentul, Kuala Lumpur. This is an affordable housing
scheme for government staff which emphasises on
comfort in aspects of size, design, quality and location.

• In order to make these houses affordable, management adopted the cost effective and
optimal industrialised construction building technology in the construction and design of
these houses.
• The involvement of MEHB in East Coast Economic Region (“ECER”) in 2011 helps to improve
the inclusivity, connectivity and accessibility of the Central and East Regions of Peninsular
Malaysia. As of today, the Group has completed a total of 15.75 km road work as well as the
drainages, road pavement, geotechnical, slope protection and bridges constructions in this
project. There is remaining 5.8 km of this project in progress.
Separately, the Group has defined its sustainability policy. This policy is published in the Company’s website at https://
melatiehsan.com.my/company-info/corporate-governance/sustainability-policy/. Going forward, the Group will establish a
formal sustainability framework by taking the following actions:
•
•
•
•
•

Define its oversight structure for overseeing the sustainability reporting;
Review the context of economic, environmental and social which the Group is operating at;
Identify the materiality and impact arising from the Group’s business activities on these economic, environmental and social
factors;
Ensure focus and attention are being given to manage the identified material factors appropriately; and
Define measures and target to monitor management initiatives on sustainability.

With respect to the corporate social responsibilities, the Group continues to uphold its values of good corporate citizenship
and contribute to the wellbeing of the society. Besides contributing to various underprivileged non-profit organisations to meet
their financial commitments, MEHB also participated in social events to promote good course. Kayuhan Harapan organised by
Persatuan Perihatin Persekitaran, Yayasan Waqaf Malaysia and Universiti Sains Islam Malaysia was one of the recent social event
that the Group participated. This event was held on 14 July 2018 in Putrajaya and Cyberjaya covering 45km of cycling activity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

This Statement is presented pursuant to Para 15.25(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”)
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). The Board has also provided specific disclosures
on its application of the principles in the latest Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) in its
Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”). Shareholders are advised to read this overview statement
together with the CG Report which can be obtained by referring to the Annual Report announcement in
Bursa’s website or by visiting the Company’s website at www.melatiehsan.com.my for further details.
Overall, the Board is of the view that the Company has, in all material aspect, complied with the Principles and Practices as set
out in the MCCG. The explanations for the departures of the following practices are reported in the respective sections in the
CG Report:
• Practice 1.3: Separation of roles between Chairman and CEO;
• Practice 4.1: Composition of Independent Directors;
• Practice 4.5: Gender diversity;
• Practice 6.1: Policies and procedures in determining remuneration of Directors and Senior Management; and
• Practice 11.2: Adoption of integrated reporting based on a globally recognized framework.
PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
I.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board has established clear functions reserved for the Board and those delegated to Management. The delineation of
the board’s roles and responsibilities are also clearly set out in the Board Charter serving as a reference point for the Board
in discharging its supervisory role on management.
It is recognised that the supply, timeliness and quality of information affect the effectiveness of the Board in overseeing the
conduct of the business and to evaluate management performance. The Board has unrestricted access to information to
enable it to discharge its duties. Board papers and minutes of meetings of the Board Committees are circulated prior to
the Board meetings to enable Board members to prepare themselves and to obtain further explanations and clarifications
where necessary, before the deliberation of the issues in the board meeting. Additionally, management is invited to attend
and provide explanation to the Board’s agenda. Progressively, the Board is also briefed by the Company Secretary, External
Auditors and the Internal Auditors on new or changes in corporate regulatory requirements.
The Chairman plays an instrumental role in providing leadership to the Board for all aspects of the Board’s roles and
responsibilities as well as facilitating the communication and understanding between Management and the Board. Currently,
the Board is led by Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, the Executive Chairman of the Company. Although the Chairman is an
Executive Chairman, his influence on the Board are balanced by the presence of Independent Non-Executive Directors
on the Board. The Board has also named a Senior Independent Director who acts as a point of contact for any concerns
deemed inappropriate to be communicated through the normal channels by stakeholders.
The Board and Board Committees are assisted by two (2) qualified and competent Company Secretaries who are
members of the Malaysian Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. The Company Secretaries support the
Board in carrying out their fiduciary duties and stewardship role in shaping the standard of corporate governance of the
Group. The Company Secretaries also served as an advisory role to the Board, particularly with regards to the Company’s
Constitution, Board’s policies and procedures and various compliances with regulatory requirements, codes, guidelines,
legislations and the principles of corporate governance practices.
All Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretaries for the purposes of the
Board’s affairs and the business of the Group. The appointment and removal of Company Secretaries of the Board can
only be made by the Board.
Procedurally, when external counsel is necessary, the director who intends to seek such consultation or advice shall notify
the Company Secretaries. The Company Secretaries shall forward the request to the Executive Chairman for approval.
Upon obtaining the Executive Chairman’s approval, the director shall engage the services of the adviser and the fee will be
borne by the Company. All advice and opinions from the advisers shall be reported to the Board.
The Board is mindful of the importance of the establishment of clear roles and responsibilities in discharging its fiduciary
and leadership functions including those reserved for the Board’s approval. The Board has defined its Board Charter and
Schedule of Matter setting out the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board, the principles and practices of corporate
governance to be followed and the key matters reserved for the Board’s approval.
The Board maintains specific Board Committees namely Executive and Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. The Board has defined the terms of reference for each Committee.
The Chairmen of the respective Committees will report to the Board during the Board meetings on matters deliberated in
the Committees.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
I.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)
The Board has also formalised its ethical standards in its Code of Ethics and Whistle Blowing policy. The objective of this
Code of Ethics is to provide guidance to stakeholders on the ethical behaviors followed by the Group while the whistle
blowing policy enforces the code of ethics by allowing stakeholders to feedback any breaches of the provisions in the
Code of Ethics to the Board.
The Board Charter, Code of Ethics & Conduct and Whistle Blowing Policy are published on the Group’s website at
www.melatiehsan.com.my for stakeholders’ information.
During the financial year, five (5) Board meetings were held. Details of each director’s attendance are as follows:
Director

Directorship

Total Meetings
Attended

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

Executive Chairman

5/5

Encik Radzulai Bin Yahaya

Executive Director

5/5

Mr Lim Tong Hee

Executive Director

5/5

Ir. Leong Chee Kian

Executive Director

5/5

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Datuk Alias Bin Ali

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

With respect to the Directors’ training, the trainings attended by the Directors during the financial year are listed below:
Director

Training

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

Sustainability Reporting

7 Aug 2018

Encik Radzulai Bin Yahaya

Sustainability Reporting

7 Aug 2018

Mr Lim Tong Hee

• Advocacy Session on Corporate Disclosure for Directors and
Principal Officers of Listed Issues
• Advocacy Sessions to enhance quality of Management
Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A”) for CEO and CFO
• CG Briefing Session: MCCG Reporting & CG Guide
• Sustainability Reporting Workshop for Practitioners
• Sustainability Reporting

3 Oct 2017
17 Oct 2017
15 Mar 2018
7 & 8 May 2018
7 Aug 2018

Ir. Leong Chee Kian

Sustainability Reporting

7 Aug 2018

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

• CG Briefing Session: MCCG Reporting & CG Guide
• Sustainability Reporting

15 Mar 2018
7 Aug 2018

Datuk Alias Bin Ali

• Corporate Integrity Pledge
• Regulatory updates on Listing Requirements (new) seminar
• Sustainability Reporting

2 Nov 2017
29 Jan 2018
7 Aug 2018

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron Sustainability Reporting
II.

Date

7 Aug 2018

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board presently has seven (7) directors comprising four (4) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent NonExecutive Directors. The profiles of each director are set out on pages 10 to 13 of this Annual Report.
All Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent of management and have no family or business relationships
with the major shareholders which would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Board recognises
the importance of gender diversity in the board. Going forward, other than skill sets, knowledge and experience, the Board
will take into account of diversity when selecting new directors in the future.
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is an Executive Chairman in the Board. Although the present number of three (3) Independent
Directors are slightly below the majority number of the board members suggested by MCCG, the present number of
independent directors in the Board exceeds Bursa Securities’ requirement of higher of two (2) directors or one-third (1/3)
of the board of directors are independent. In addition, in order to provide an avenue to the shareholders to convey their
concerns, the Board has named Datuk Alias Bin Ali to act as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, serving as
an alternative for shareholders to convey their questions and seek clarifications from the Board.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
II.

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)
In accordance to Board Charter, the tenure of an Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9)
years from the date of first appointment as Director. In the event the Board wishes to retain the independence status of
an Independent Director who has served for more than nine (9) years, Board justification and shareholders’ approval are
required. Two tier voting process will be applied in the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for retaining any Independent
Director serving beyond twelve (12) years.
As at the date of this statement, two (2) Independent Directors of the Board have been serving for more than nine (9) years
but less than twelve (12) years. Similar with the previous year, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM,
the Board wishes to retain all Independent Directors to serve as Independent Directors of the Company. The justification
of the Board are as follows:
i.

The Independent Directors have fulfilled the criteria stated under the definition of Independent Director as defined
in the MMLR;

ii.

Their length of service on the Board does not affect their objective judgement and ability to act in the best interest
of the Company and the Group. By contrast, the Board benefited from their years of service, who possess detailed
knowledge of the Group’s business and with proven commitment, experience and competencies; and

iii.

All Independent Directors have discharged their duties with reasonable care, brought independent judgement into
Board’s decision making as well as provided proper check and balance to the Board for the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders.

The appointment of Board is based on objective criteria, merit and with due regard for diversity in skills, experience, age
and cultural background. Following table summarises the diversity in diversity in skills, experience and age distribution.
Age Group

40 - 49 years

50 - 59 years

60 - 69 years

70 - 79 years

Executive Director

2

1

1

-

Independent and Non-Executive Director

-

-

1

2

Accounting &
Finance

Engineering

Public Service

Business
Management &
Development

Executive Director

1

1

-

2

Independent and Non-Executive Director

1

-

1

1

Skills

III.

BOARD’S PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT
The Board has established formal assessment processes for evaluation of its performance and the performance of its
committee and individual directors. These assessment processes comprise Board Assessment, Board Skills Matrix,
Individual Directors Assessment, Board Committee Self and Peer Assessment, and Assessment of Independence of
Independent Directors and was administered by Nomination Committee.
Based on this assessment, the Board was satisfied with the overall performance of individual Director, Board and Board
Committees for the financial year under review.

IV.

REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is authorised by the Board to establish formal and transparent policies and procedures
to determine the remuneration of Directors. The remunerations of Executive Directors will be determined based on the
Company’s performance and profitability, the prevailing market conditions and performance of individual Directors while
the remuneration for Non-Executive Directors is based on their contribution and level of responsibilities.
Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act, 2016, fees and any benefits payable to the directors of a listed company
and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general meeting.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
IV.

REMUNERATION (continued)
In deciding the remuneration package for executive members of the Board, the RC had reviewed the remuneration package
of the executive members against the remuneration package of others construction-based listed companies against the
financial performance of the Group and the areas of responsibilities, contribution, job function, experience level and
qualification of directors of similar position in the market.
The details of the Directors’ annual remuneration received and receivable from the Company and the Subsidiary Companies
are as follows:
i.

Received from the Company
Salaries
& other
emoluments
(RM)

Fees
(RM)

Bonuses
(RM)

EPF,
SOCSO &
EIS
(RM)

Benefitin-Kind
(RM)

Total
(RM)

Executive Directors
1. Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

50,000

-

-

-

-

50,000

2. Radzulai Bin Yahaya

20,000

-

-

-

-

20,000

3. Lim Tong Hee

20,000

-

-

-

-

20,000

4. Ir. Leong Chee Kian

20,000

-

-

-

-

20,000

5. Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

36,000

7,000

-

-

-

43,000

6. Datuk Alias Bin Ali

36,000

7,000

-

-

-

43,000

7. Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

36,000

7,000

-

-

-

43,000

218,000

21,000

-

-

-

239,000

Non-Executive Directors

Total:
ii.

Received from the Subsidiaries Companies
Salaries
& other
emoluments
(RM)

Fees
(RM)

Bonuses
(RM)

EPF,
SOCSO &
EIS
(RM)

Benefitin-Kind
(RM)

Total
(RM)

Executive Directors
1. Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

-

480,000

600,000

65,986

15,967

1,161,953

2. Radzulai Bin Yahaya

-

72,000

6,000

10,236

-

88,236

3. Lim Tong Hee

-

305,669

44,000

39,772

-

389,441

4. Ir. Leong Chee Kian

-

316,000

50,000

44,812

-

410,812

5. Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

-

-

-

-

-

-

6. Datuk Alias Bin Ali

-

-

-

-

-

-

Non-Executive Directors

7. Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
Total:

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,173,669

700,000

160,806

15,967

2,050,442

* The directors’ fees paid are related to financial year 2018.
The Board will propose the Directors’ fee of RM350,000 to be payable for financial year 2019 which shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
I.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has established an effective and independent Audit Committee (“AC”). The AC members are financially literate
and are able to understand matters under the purview of the AC including the financial reporting process. Presently, the
members of AC comprising fully Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Chairman of the AC is not the Chairman of the Board. The AC Chairman is able to access to all Executive Directors,
Senior Management, External and Internal Auditors. The review of the terms of office and performance of the AC and each
of its members are carried out annually.
The Board is satisfied that, with the present composition structure and practice, the AC is able to objectively review and
report its findings and recommendations to the Board.
The AC adopts the best practice of requiring a cooling-off period of at least two years before appointing a former key audit
partner of the external auditors as a member of the AC. Nevertheless, this instance has not arisen to date.
The AC reviews the independence, performance and remuneration of the External Auditors on annual basis before
recommending them to the shareholders for re-appointment in the AGM. In assessing the External Auditors, the AC will
consider the independence of External Auditors, quality of audit review procedures and adequacy of the firm’s expertise
and its resources to carry out their audit work.
The AC will convene meeting with the External Auditors and Internal Auditors without the presence of the Executive
Directors and employees of the Group as and when necessary. As part of the AC review processes, the AC has obtained
assurance from the External Auditors confirming that they are, and have been, independent throughout the conduct of the
audit engagement in accordance with the terms of all relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

II.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board as a whole responsible for the oversight of risk management in the Group covering the systems of risk
management and internal control for financial, operational and compliance while the Executive Directors together with the
senior management team are primary responsible for managing risks in the Group.
The Board is assisted by the Executive and Risk Management Committee and AC for managing and overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems respectively of the Group.
The Internal Audit Function is carried out by IA Essential Sdn. Bhd. (“IA Essential”) an internal audit consulting firm. The
internal audit function is headed by a Director who is assisted by a manager and supported by an audit executive. The
Director in-charge is a qualified accountant while the rest of the team members are accounting graduates from local
universities. The Internal Auditors have performed its work with reference to the principles of the International Professional
Practice Framework of Institute of Internal Auditors covering the conduct of the audit planning, execution, documentations,
communication of findings and consultation with key stakeholders. The AC will review the engagement between the Group
and IA Essential to ensure that the Internal Auditors’ objectivity and independence are not impaired or affected.
Further details of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control and the internal audit function are reported
in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 30 to 31 and the AC Report on page 28 respectively
in this Annual Report.
Overall, the Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy the existing level of systems of risk management and
internal control.
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PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
I.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS
The Board recognises the need and importance of communication with shareholders and investors on all material business
and corporate matters of the Group. It is believed that clear and consistent communication with investors promotes better
appreciation of the Company’s business and activities, reduces share price volatility, and allows the Company’s business
and prospects to be evaluated fairly.
The financial results and announcements of the Group are published quarterly on Bursa Securities’ website at www.
bursamalaysia.com. The Company also maintains its website at www.melatiehsan.com.my containing essential corporate
information of the Group for the interest of the general public. Other ways of communicating with stakeholders by the Board
include shareholders interaction during the general meetings and meetings with research analysts and fund managers if
requested to provide them with insight of business in Group.

II.

CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS
Notice of the AGM and Annual Reports are sent to shareholders twenty-eight (28) days prior to the meeting and published
in a major local newspaper. The notes to the Notice of AGM will provide detailed explanation for each resolution proposed
to enable shareholders to make informed decisions in exercising their voting rights.
The Board will respond to all questions raised by shareholders during AGM. In addition, members of senior management
and external auditors of the Company would also attend the AGM and respond to shareholders’ queries, if needed.
In line with Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the MMLR, all resolutions set out in the Notice of AGM will be put to vote by poll. The
Company will also appoint an independent scrutineer to validate the vote cast in the AGM. The outcome of the AGM will
be announced to Bursa Securities on the same meeting day while the summary of key matters discussed during the AGM
will be posted on the Company website.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the AGM could appoint their respective proxies to participate, speak and vote on
their behalf at all general meetings of the Company. Moving forward, the Company will consider leveraging on technology
to facilitate greater shareholders’ participation in general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that:
i.

The annual audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company are drawn up in accordance with applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2016 and the MMLR so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company for the financial year, and

ii.

Proper accounting and other records are kept which enable the preparation of the financial statements with reasonable
accuracy and taking reasonable steps to ensure that appropriate systems are in place to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

In the preparation of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2018, the Directors have adopted appropriate
accounting policies and have applied them consistently in the financial statement with reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates. The Directors are also satisfied that all relevant approved accounting standards have been followed in the preparation
of the financial statements.

Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (673293-X)
Annual Report 2018

27

NOMINATION COMMITTEE’S STATEMENT

The Nomination Committee is established and maintained to ensure that there are formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board and for the performance appraisal of directors. In order to ensure that the selection and
evaluation of board members are done objectively, the Nomination Committee consists of mainly independent board members
and the Committee is chaired by an Independent Director. Presently, the members of the Committee are as follows:
Chairman
Datuk Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Members
Datuk Alias Bin Ali
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

(Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee are
available at the Company’s website at www.melatiehsan.com.my
for shareholders’ reference.
Annually, the Nomination Committee assessed the effectiveness
of the board, board committees, and contribution of each
individual directors. The key criteria used in the appraisal to
evaluate the overall effectiveness of the Board collectively in
discharging its functions are as follows:
i.

Mix of Board Composition;

ii.

Experience, Skillset and Competency;

iii.

Quality of Input for Decision Making;

iv.

Board’s Attendance and Participation;

v.

Fit and Proper;

vi.

Contribution and Performance; and

vii.

Calibre and Personality.

The Nomination Committee also reviews the independence
of the Independent Directors. Criteria for assessment of
independence are primarily based on the requirements and
definition of “independent director” as set out in the Main
Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) and the integrity and
objectivity of the independent director in discharging his
duties. Individual members of the Nomination Committee had
abstained from deliberation with respect to their independence.
In recommending the Directors for re-election to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the individual Directors’
annual assessment result to ensure that the performance
of the directors who are retiring by rotation are satisfactory.
Similarly, individual director who were retiring by rotation, had
abstained from making recommendation of their respective reelections and re-appointments.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ESTABLISHMENT AND COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (the “Company”) was established on 29 January 2007.
For the financial year ended 31 August 2018, the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) comprises the following directors:Chairman
Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Members
Datuk Alias Bin Ali
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

(Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of Reference of the Committee is available for viewing under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
During the financial year ended 31 August 2018, five (5) meetings were held on 25 January 2018, 23 April 2018, 30 July 2018,
25 October 2018, and 26 November 2018. The details of the Audit Committee’s meetings held and attended by the Committee
during the financial year are as follows:Audit Committee Member

No. of Meetings Attended

Chairman :

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya
(Independent Non-Executive Chairman)

5/5

Members :

Datuk Alias Bin Ali
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

5/5

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

5/5

SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018
During the financial year ended 31 August 2018, the activities of the Audit Committee included the following:a.

b.

c.
d.
e.

reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results and announcements of the Company and of the Group prior to submission
to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. The items typically reviewed are the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows as well as the explanatory notes pursuant to Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”)
134 i.e. Interim Financial Reporting as well as Appendix 9B of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing
Requirements on Quarterly Reports. The Committee also reviews the variance of the quarterly results against the budget
and the impact of unusual transactions including significant related party transactions, if any;
reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2017. The Committee would take note of the
external auditor’s observations arising from the audit that are significant e.g. any material variance between the financial
results of the fourth quarter and the audited figures, any unadjusted audit differences above the threshold or material
weaknesses in internal controls;
reviewed the External Auditors’ report to the Committee for the financial year ended 31 August 2017 in relation to the audit;
reviewed the assistance and cooperation given by the employees to the External Auditors in respect of the audit for the
financial year ended 31 August 2017;
reviewed disclosure statements on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee Report and the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control for the financial year ended 31 August 2017 and recommended their adoption to the
Board;
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SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018 (continued)
f.
g.

h.
i.
j.

met with the External Auditors twice during the financial year ended 31 August 2018 without the presence of any executive
Board members;
reviewed with the External Auditors the Audit Planning Memorandum for the financial year ended 31 August 2018 which
comprised inter alia, the declaration by the External Auditors of their professional independence, the audit objectives,
the statutory / other responsibilities of the auditors and directors, scope of the audit and its workflow, audit materiality
threshold, areas of audit emphasis, new Financial Reporting Standards issued and effective / not yet effective, amendments
to Bursa Malaysia’s Listing Requirements relating to disclosure and corporate governance, the new format of the auditors’
report and the External Auditor’s deliverables and key dates in the audit;
considered the audit fee payable and the nomination of the External Auditors for recommendation to the Board for reappointment;
reviewed internal audit reports prepared by the Internal Auditors on recurrent related party transactions, follow-up audit
report and effectiveness of controls in Bayu Andaman Project and Central Spine Road Pakej 3E1; and
reviewed guidelines and procedures for recurrent related party transactions.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
In accordance with paragraph 15.27 of the Bursa’s Listing Requirements, a listed issuer must establish an internal audit function
which is independent of the activities it audits and must ensure its internal audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee.
In furtherance thereof, the Group had established an internal audit function which is essential for assisting the Audit Committee
in reviewing the state of the systems of internal control maintained by the management.
This function is outsourced to an internal audit consulting company. The audit team members are independent of the activities
audited by them. Functionally, the internal auditors review and assess the Group’s system of internal control and report to the
Committee directly. Audit plan is produced and presented to the Audit Committee for review and approval. This ensures that the
audit direction is in line with the Audit Committee’s expectations.
The Internal Auditors have performed its work in accordance with the principles of the international professional practice
framework on internal auditing covering the conduct of the audit planning, execution, documentations, communication of
findings and consultation with key stakeholders on the audit concerns.
During the financial year, the Internal Auditors conducted the internal control reviews on the operating functions and
procedures and recommended action plans for management improvement. The final audit reports containing audit findings and
recommendations together with management’s responses thereto were circulated and presented to all members of the Audit
Committee. The areas and operating processes reviewed by the Internal Auditors are as follows:i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Effectiveness of controls in PPAM Bayu Andaman Project;
Effectiveness of controls in Central Spine Road Pakej 3E1;
Review of Recurrent Related Party Transaction; and
Follow-up audit report.

All internal audit reports were reviewed by the Audit Committee and discussed at Audit Committee Meetings. Follow-up
reviews would subsequently be performed to ascertain the extent of implementation of the recommended corrective action for
improvements.
The cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2018 was RM64,140.00 (2017:
RM65,031.00).
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is pleased to present its Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the financial
year ended 31 August 2018. This Statement is prepared pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market
Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) and guided by the “Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers” (“the Guideline”) endorsed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Bursa”).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND KEY INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Group has an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing principal risks facing the organisation. Presently,
the risk management function is driven by the Executive and Risk Management Committee (“ERMC”). The ERMC comprises all
Executive Directors of the Board and appointed key management personnel. The key functions of the ERMC are to assess and
formulate strategies and action plans to manage the business and risks of the Group.
The ERMC holds weekly meeting to review and monitor the developments in the business and the progress of on-going and
potential projects. The objective of these meetings is to ensure decisions and expected operation performance targets and
objectives set by the Group are communicated and understood by the heads of department. During the meetings, the respective
heads of department would also report the performance and status of their projects. This reporting process provides the channel
of communication and feedback for the ERMC to monitor the business operations as well as to supervise and align the decisions
and actions taken by their respective heads of department for ensuring the risk management effectiveness.
The Group has also established a “Risk Planning and Action Form” to document potential risks and challenges identified in
various projects and departments, and the mitigation plan. Each risk is rated and documented based on “Risk-Based Matrix”
after considering the impact and likelihood of occurrence of the risks. Presently, the key risks focus of the Group are project
quality, site safety and health, impact of the Group’s construction and development projects on communities and environment,
project delivery timeline and resourcing of skilful and experienced staff.
In respect of the Group’s internal control systems, besides the management organization structure providing the reporting lines
and authorities of the top executives and heads of department, the key subsidiaries continue to be accredited with the ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management System. This certification provides the minimum level of quality in the management processes
while the ISO Quality Manual sets out the operating procedures guiding staff members in carrying out their function effectively.
This Quality Manual covers the areas of Purchasing, Sales, Billing, Collection, Pre- and Post-Contract, Progress Claims, Project
Management, Machinery Maintenance, monitoring of non-conformity controls and Risk-Based Action. Annually, the quality
system is subject to internal quality and annual independent surveillance audits.

BOARD REVIEW MECHANISM
In order to ensure the objectivity of the review of the systems of risk management and internal control in the Group, the Audit
Committee is instituted by the Board to undertake this responsibility.
In conducting its review, the Audit Committee is assisted by the Internal Auditors who report to the Audit Committee quarterly
on the state of control of the selected and audited areas. The key audit review areas are project managements, tendering and
selection of sub-contractors, progress billings and claims, variation orders, site safety control and monitoring of site progress; and
recurrent related party transactions. In addition, an annual follow-up audit was performed to ascertain the status of management
implementation of the recommended action plan.
The Audit Committee also reviews the financial information and reports as well as any unusual significant transactions or recurrent
related party transactions. In consultation with management, the Audit Committee deliberates the quarterly financial results,
annual report and audited financial statements before recommending to the Board for approving these financial results to be
presented to the shareholders and public investors. Complimenting this review process, the Audit Committee obtains feedback
from the External Auditors on the risk and control issues noted in their course of audit, if any.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND ASSURANCE
In accordance to the Guideline of Bursa Securities, management is responsible to the Board for identifying risks relevant to
the business of the Group’s objectives and strategies; implementing and maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal control; and monitoring and reporting to the Board of significant control deficiencies and changes in risks that could
significantly affect the Group’s achievement of its objective and performance.
Towards this end, the Board is pleased to report that it has received assurance from the Executive Chairman and Executive
Director cum Chief Financial Officer that, to the best of their knowledge, the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects.

BOARD ASSURANCE AND LIMITATION
The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for:
• ensuring sound framework for internal controls and risk management in the Group;
• understanding the principal risks of the Group’s business and recognising that business decisions involve the taking of
appropriate risks;
• setting the risk appetite within which the Board expects management to operate; and
• ensuring that there is an appropriate risk management framework to identify, analyse, evaluate, manage and monitor
significant financial and non-financial risks.
The Board confirms that the process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks in the Group is on-going. For the
financial year under review, there was no material loss resulted from significant control weaknesses. The Board is satisfied that
the existing level of systems of internal control and risk management are effective to enable the Group to achieve its business
objectives.
While, the Board wishes to reiterate that risk management and systems of internal control would be continuously improved in
line with the evolving business development, it should be noted that all systems of risk management and internal control could
only manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives. Therefore, these systems could only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatements, frauds and losses.
The disclosures in this Statement do not include the risk management and internal control practices of the Group’s joint ventures.
Presently, the Group’s interest in this entity is safeguarded through joint directorship, signatory of bank account and decision
making in operation and management.

REVIEW OF STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
As required by paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR, the External Auditors have reviewed this Statement for inclusion in the Annual
Report for the financial year ended 31 August 2018.
As set out in their terms of engagement, the review was performed in accordance with Audit and Assurance Practice Guide
(“AAPG”) 3 (February 2018) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants for assessing whether this Statement appropriately
reflects the process the Board has adopted in reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group. Nonetheless, this AAPG does not require the External Auditors to consider whether this Statement
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control procedures.
Based on the procedures performed, the External Auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that this Statement is not prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the disclosures
required by paragraph 41 and 42 of the Guideline, nor is factually inaccurate.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS
No proceed were raised by the Company from any corporate proposal during the financial year ended 31 August 2018.
AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES
The auditors’ remuneration including non-audit fees for the Company and the Group for the financial year ended 31 August 2018
is as follows:Details of Audit Fees
Statutory Audit Fees
Non-Audit Fees

Group (RM)

Company
(RM)

129,000

30,000

5,000

3,000

MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING DIRECTORS AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
There are no material contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) entered into by the Company
and its subsidiaries, involving directors’ and major shareholders’ interest, either still subsisting at the end of the financial year
ended 31 August 2018 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.
RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION OF A REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE
On 27 February 2018, the Company obtained approval from the shareholders for the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into
recurrent related party transactions or a revenue or trading nature with persons who are considered to be “Related Party” as
defined in Chapter 10 of the Listing Requirements.
The breakdown of the aggregate value of the recurrent related party transactions made during the financial year ended 31 August
2018 are set out below:Interested Director/Major
Shareholder or Person
Connected

Value transacted
during the year ended
31/08/2018 (RM)

Bonus Focus (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean

32,316

Melati Ehsan Development Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean
Radzulai Bin Yahaya

-

Mega Legacy (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean
Radzulai Bin Yahaya
Yap Wei Sam

-

Sentul Murni Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean

70,678,732

Bayu Mantap Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean
Yap Wei Sam
Yap Wei Nie

14,418,629

Nature of
Transactions

Melati Group with the following
Related Parties

Construction
contracts and
development
projects

Rental of premises

Konsortium Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd.- Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Desa Purnama Sdn. Bhd.
Radzulai Bin Yahaya
Yap Wei Sam

-

Kuasa Ehsan Development Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean

-

Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Radzulai Bin Yahaya
Yap Wei Sam

-

Maris Development Sdn. Bhd.

Radzulai Bin Yahaya

60,000
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 August 2018.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities and the details of the subsidiaries are set out
in Note 7 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial
year.
RESULTS
Group
RM

Company
RM

Profit for the financial year

2,412,911

1,501,787

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

2,412,911

1,501,787

DIVIDEND
Dividend paid and declared since the end of the previous financial year was as follows:
RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2017:
First and final single-tier dividend of 1.00 sen per ordinary share,
paid on 19 March 2018

1,193,464

The Directors proposed a first and final single-tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM1,191,691 in respect of
the financial year ended 31 August 2018, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year.
ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
There were no issue of new shares or debentures during the financial year.
TREASURY SHARES
The shareholders of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 27 February 2018,
approved the Company’s plan to repurchase up to 10% of the issued and paid-up ordinary share capital of the Company.
The Directors of the Company are committed to enhance the value of the Company to its shareholders and believed that the
purchase plan is applied in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
During the financial year, the Company repurchased 207,300 (2017: 22,000) of its issued share capital from the open market on
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for RM138,954 (2017: RM19,702). The average price paid for the shares repurchased was
RM0.67 (2017: RM0.90) per ordinary share. The repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds. The shares
repurchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with the requirement of Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016
in Malaysia.
As at 31 August 2018, the Company held a total of 831,300 (2017: 624,000) of its 120,000,434 issued ordinary share capital as
treasury shares. Such treasury shares are being held at a carrying amount of RM708,670 (2017: RM569,716) and further relevant
details are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who have held for office during the financial year up to the date of this report are:
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee*
Radzulai Bin Yahaya*
Lim Tong Hee*
Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya*
Datuk Alias Bin Ali
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
Ir. Leong Chee Kian*
* Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
The Director of the subsidiary of the Company who have held for office during the financial year up to the date of this report,
excluding those who are listed above is:
Ho Yong Tong @ Kelvin Ho (resigned on 30 March 2018)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their beneficial interests in ordinary shares of the Company during
the financial year ended 31 August 2018 as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under
Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares
Balance 			
as at			
1.9.2017
Bought
Sold
Shares in the Company
Direct interests:
Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron
Lim Tong Hee
Indirect interests:
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Radzulai Bin Yahaya

Balance
as at
31.8.2018

39,900
20,000

-

-

39,900
20,000

59,689,511
13,955,075

-

-

59,689,511
13,955,075

By virtue of his interests in the ordinary shares of the Company, Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is also deemed to be interested in
the ordinary shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent that the Company has an interest.
None of the other Directors holding office at the end of the financial year held any interest in ordinary shares or options over
ordinary shares of the Company or of its related corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other
than those benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the Directors as shown
in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm
of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest other than certain
Directors who received remunerations from the subsidiaries as Directors of the subsidiaries and the transactions entered into in
the ordinary course of business with companies in which the Directors of the Company have substantial financial interests as
disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, to which the Company is a party, which had the object
of enabling the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The details of Directors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
There were no indemnity or insurance effected for Directors, officers or auditors of the Group and of the Company during the
financial year.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
(I)

AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
(a)

(b)

(II)

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the Directors took reasonable
steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
provision for doubtful debts and have satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debt to be written off
and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to realise their book values in the
ordinary course of business had been written down to their estimated realisable values.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year
have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THIS REPORT
(c)

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or render the amount of provision for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any material extent;

(ii)

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading; and

(iii)

which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of
the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY (continued)
(II)

FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THIS REPORT (continued)
(d)

(III)

In the opinion of the Directors:
(i)

there has not arisen any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially
the results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made;
and

(ii)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable, within the period
of twelve (12) months after the end of the financial year which would or may affect the ability of the Group and
of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

AS AT THE DATE OF THIS REPORT
(e)

There are no charges on the assets of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the
financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person.

(f)

There are no contingent liabilities of the Group and of the Company which have arisen since the end of the financial
year.

(g)

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the report or financial statements
which would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

AUDITORS
The auditors, BDO, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Details of auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Director
Kuala Lumpur
26 November 2018

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya
Director
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 43 to 81 have been drawn up in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 August 2018 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended.

On behalf of the Board,

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee
Director

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya
Director

Kuala Lumpur
26 November 2018

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, Lim Tong Hee, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 43 to 81 are, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions
of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly
declared by the abovenamed at
Kuala Lumpur this
26 November 2018

)
)
)
)
Lim Tong Hee
CA 20377

Before me:
Baloo T. Pichai
W663
Commissioner for Oaths
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

to the Members of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad
(Incorporated In Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at 31 August 2018 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 43 to 81.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 August 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
Key Audit Matters for the Group
(a)

Revenue and cost of sales recognition for construction contracts and property development
Revenue from construction contracts and property development for the financial year ended 31 August 2018 amounted to
RM173.6 million and RM82.6 million respectively as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. Cost of sales from
construction contracts and property development for the financial year ended 31 August 2018 amounted to RM165.1
million and RM12.8 million respectively as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
The Group recognised revenue and costs from construction contracts and property development based on the percentage
of completion method.
Significant management judgement and estimates are involved in determining the estimated total contract costs, which
forms part of the computation of percentage of completion for construction contracts and property development projects.
Audit response
Our audit procedures included the following:
(i)

Assessed the stage of completion determined by management for revenue recognition, by taking into account
the construction and development costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period and the estimated costs to
complete;
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(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Key Audit Matters for the Group (continued)
(a)

Revenue and cost of sales recognition for construction contracts and property development (continued)
Audit response (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Verified samples of costs incurred to date to the relevant supporting documentation such as contractors’ progress
claims;

(iii)

Compared prior budgets to actual outcomes to assess reliability of management’s budgeting process; and

(iv)

Inquired and inspected correspondences from sub-contractors in relation to variation orders and claims.

Recoverability of trade receivables
As at 31 August 2018, trade receivables that were past due and not impaired amounted to RM100.5 million. The details of
trade receivables and credit risk have been disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.
Management recognised allowances for impairment losses on trade receivables based on specific known facts or
circumstances on customers’ abilities to pay.
The determination of whether trade receivables are realisable or otherwise involves significant management judgement.
Audit response
Our audit procedures included the following:
(i)

Inquired from management regarding action plans to recover overdue amounts;

(ii)

Assessed evidence that adequate allowance for impairment losses has been made by management based on
analysis of customer creditworthiness, historical payment trends and expectation of payment patterns; and

(iii)

Assessed the levels of cash received subsequent to the end of the reporting period for its effect in reducing amounts
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.

Key Audit Matters for the Company
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Company.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our
auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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(Incorporated In Malaysia)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that
give a true and fair view in accordance with FRSs and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors
are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of
the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
(a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the
Group and of the Company.

(c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

(d)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(f)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

BDO
AF : 0206
Chartered Accountants
26 November 2018
Kuala Lumpur

Tan Seong Yuh
03314/07/2019 (J)
Chartered Accountant
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 August 2018

Group
		 2018
Note
RM

Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land held for property development
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in a joint venture
Goodwill on consolidation
Deferred tax assets
Other receivables

5
6
7
8(a)
9
10
13

5,414,321
48,325,174
3,481,343
506,455
2,484,097
5,778,695

5,289,618
64,608,025
2,213,286
506,455
2,477,248
-

181,547,719
2,450,000
5,778,695

124,247,719
2,450,000
-

65,990,085

75,094,632

189,776,414

126,697,719

Property development costs
11
Inventories
12
Trade and other receivables
13
Current tax assets		
Cash and bank balances
15

16,152,651
10,061,637
225,391,438
2,596,371
19,808,683

31,115,959
46,546,240
128,184,561
2,252,871
37,767,831

137,463
22,000
2,239,621

59,442,971
22,000
3,129,250

			

274,010,780

245,867,462

2,399,084

62,594,221

TOTAL ASSETS		 340,000,865

320,962,094

192,175,498

189,291,940

60,000,217
(708,670)
151,779,951

60,000,217
(569,716)
150,560,504

60,000,217
(708,670)
128,157,411

60,000,217
(569,716)
127,849,088

TOTAL EQUITY		 211,071,498

209,991,005

187,448,958

187,279,589

1,441,893
1,451,283

1,850,613
1,400,000

-

-

			
2,893,176

3,250,613

-

-

110,870,998
15,100,193
65,000

106,554,648
565,828
600,000

4,726,540
-

2,012,351
-

			126,036,191

107,720,476

4,726,540

2,012,351

TOTAL LIABILITIES		128,929,367

110,971,089

4,726,540

2,012,351

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		 340,000,865

320,962,094

192,175,498

189,291,940

			
Current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

16
17
18

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

19
10

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
22
Borrowings
19
Current tax liabilities		

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the Financial Year Ended 31 August 2018

Group
		 2018
Note
RM

Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

Revenue

24

287,848,922

168,047,874

3,000,000

3,000,000

Cost of sales

25

(270,164,711)

(150,591,696)

-

-

Gross profit		 17,684,211

17,456,178

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,606,976

1,750,467

31,492

908

Administrative expenses		 (9,171,500)

(10,526,868)

(269,510)

(242,250)

(7,989,576)

(4,592,425)

(1,260,002)

(294,557)

(196,582)

(103,384)

-

-

8(a)(iv)

1,268,057

(75,143)

-

-

Profit before tax

26

3,201,586

3,908,825

1,501,980

2,464,101

Taxation

27

(788,675)

(1,483,248)

(193)

-

Profit for the financial year		

2,412,911

2,425,577

1,501,787

2,464,101

Other comprehensive
income, net of tax		

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income		 2,412,911

2,425,577

1,501,787

2,464,101

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent		

2,412,911

2,425,577

1,501,787

2,464,101

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the parent		

2,412,911

2,425,577

1,501,787

2,464,101

Other income		

Other expenses		
Finance costs		
Share of results of a
joint venture, net of tax

Earnings per ordinary share attributable				
to equity holders of the Company:				
Basic (sen)

28

2.02

2.03

Diluted (sen)

28

2.02

2.03

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the Financial Year Ended 31 August 2018

Non-distributable
				Reverse
			
Share
Share
acquisition
			
capital
premium
debit
Group
Note
RM
RM
RM

Treasury
shares
RM

Retained
earnings
RM

Total
equity
RM

Balance as at
1 September 2016		

60,000,217

Profit for the
financial year		 Other comprehensive
income, net of tax		 Total comprehensive
income		 -

Distributable

19,830,264

(34,450,921)

(550,014)

164,845,039

209,674,585

-

-

-

2,425,577

2,425,577

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,425,577

2,425,577

Transactions
with owners
Repurchase of
own shares
Dividend paid

17
29

-

-

-

(19,702)
-

(2,089,455)

(19,702)
(2,089,455)

Total transactions
with owners		

-

-

-

(19,702)

(2,089,455)

(2,109,157)

Balance as at
31 August 2017/
1 September 2017		

60,000,217

19,830,264

(34,450,921)

(569,716)

165,181,161

209,991,005

-

-

-

2,412,911

2,412,911

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,412,911

2,412,911

Profit for the
financial year		 Other comprehensive
income, net of tax		 Total comprehensive
income		 Transactions
with owners
Repurchase of
own shares
Dividend paid

17
29

-

-

-

(138,954)
-

(1,193,464)

(138,954)
(1,193,464)

Total transactions
with owners		

-

-

-

(138,954)

(1,193,464)

(1,332,418)

Balance as at
31 August 2018		

60,000,217

19,830,264

(34,450,921)

(708,670)

166,400,608

211,071,498

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the Financial Year Ended 31 August 2018

		
		
Company
Note
Balance as at
1 September 2016		

Share
capital
RM

Non-distributable
Share
Treasury
premium
shares
RM
RM

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM

Total
equity
RM

60,000,217

19,830,264

(550,014)

107,644,178

186,924,645

Profit for the financial year		
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax		

-

-

-

2,464,101

2,464,101

-

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income		

-

-

-

2,464,101

2,464,101

17
29

-

-

(19,702)
-

(2,089,455)

(19,702)
(2,089,455)

Total transactions with owners		

-

-

(19,702)

(2,089,455)

(2,109,157)

Balance as at 31 August 2017/
1 September 2017		

60,000,217

19,830,264

(569,716)

108,018,824

187,279,589

Profit for the financial year		
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax		

-

-

-

1,501,787

1,501,787

-

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income		

-

-

-

1,501,787

1,501,787

17
29

-

-

(138,954)
-

(1,193,464)

(138,954)
(1,193,464)

Total transactions with owners		

-

-

(138,954)

(1,193,464)

(1,332,418)

Balance as at 31 August 2018		

60,000,217

19,830,264

(708,670)

108,327,147

187,448,958

Transactions with owners
Repurchase of own shares
Dividend paid

Transactions with owners
Repurchase of own shares
Dividend paid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the Financial Year Ended 31 August 2018

Group
		 2018
Note
RM

2017
RM

Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 		

3,201,586

3,908,825

1,501,980

2,464,101

915,603
-

(3,000,000)

(3,000,000)

-

1,011,595

-

16,427
103,384
(640,973)
1,270,095

(31,492)
-

(908)
-

-

-

-

75,143

-

-

3,026,971

5,648,504

(517,917)

(536,807)

Working capital changes:
Land held for property development		
16,282,851
Property development costs		
6,555,120
Inventories		44,892,791
Trade and other receivables		
(100,770,900)
Amounts due from contract customers		
1,201,023
Trade and other payables		
(14,728,989)
Amounts due to contract customers		
18,564,328

(730,971)
3,770,045
(392,757)
(18,364,959)
(10,761,381)
13,082,558
18,017,770

(40,593)
-

5,000
(2,454)
-

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations		
(24,976,805)
Tax paid		(1,925,326)
Tax refunded		 302,585

10,268,809
(1,399,500)
623,604

(558,510)
(24,000)
23,807

(534,261)
(22,000)
24,000

9,492,913

(558,703)

(532,261)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
5
405,686
Dividend income
24
Discounting on amount due
from a joint venture		
1,011,595
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment		
(8,000)
Finance costs		
196,582
Interest income		
(459,833)
Provision for liquidated damages
22(c)(iii)
397,412
Reversal of impairment loss on
other receivables
13(c)(vi)
(450,000)
Share of results of a joint venture,
net of tax
8(a)(iv)
(1,268,057)
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes		

Net cash (used in)/from
operating activities		

(26,599,546)
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Group
		 2018
Note
RM

Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advances to a joint venture		
Advances/Repayments from subsidiaries		
Dividend income received		
Interest received		
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
5(c)
Placement of fixed deposit pledged		
Withdrawal of fixed deposits pledged		

(3,977,290)
459,833

(343,000)
640,973

(3,977,290)
1,947,290
3,000,000
31,492

(343,000)
2,816,000
3,000,000
908

8,000
(181,389)
(2,039,219)
-

71,698
(649,100)
1,956,850

-

-

Net (used in)/from investing activities		

(5,730,065)

1,677,421

1,001,492

5,473,908

Dividend paid
29
Interest paid		
Repayments of hire purchase payables		
Repayments of term loans		
Repurchase of own shares
17
Drawdown of term loan		

(1,193,464)
(112,983)
(215,682)
(400,051)
(138,954)
14,392,378

(2,089,455)
(100,380)
(144,199)
(194,366)
(19,702)
-

(1,193,464)
(138,954)
-

(2,089,455)
(19,702)
-

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities		

12,331,244

(2,548,102)

(1,332,418)

(2,109,157)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents		

(19,998,367)

8,622,232

(889,629)

2,832,490

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of financial year		

37,767,831

29,145,599

3,129,250

296,760

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of financial year

17,769,464

37,767,831

2,239,621

3,129,250

Hire
purchase
creditors
RM

Term
loans
RM

Total
RM

At 1 September 2017		
Cash flows		
Non-cash changes
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
5(c)

400,807
(215,682)

2,015,634
13,992,327

2,416,441
13,776,645

349,000

-

349,000

At 31 August 2018

534,125

16,007,961

16,542,086

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

15(e)

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
			
			
			
Group
Note

19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATMENTS

31 August 2018

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company are located at No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa, 53200 Kuala
Lumpur.
The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2018 comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in a joint venture and a joint operation. These financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 26 November 2018.

2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
7 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial
year.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRSs”) and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the effects of adoption
of new FRSs during the financial year. The new FRSs and Amendments to FRSs adopted during the financial year are set
out in Note 34(a) to the financial statements.
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as otherwise stated in the financial statements.

4.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding, turnkey construction,
property development, trading of construction materials and rental of machineries.
The Group has arrived at three (3) reportable segments that are organised and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services, specific expertise and technologies requirements, which require different business and
marketing strategies. The reportable segments are summarised as follows:
Construction
Trading
Property development

turnkey construction
trading of construction materials and rental of machineries
development of residential and commercial properties

Other operating segments that do not meet the quantitative thresholds of an individual reportable segment comprise
mainly operations related to investment holding and money lending business.
The chief operating decision maker of the Group monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on the basis of profit or loss from operations before tax.
Inter-segment revenue is priced along the same lines as sales to external customers and is eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been applied consistently throughout the current and previous financial years.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to
be used for more than one period.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Geographical Segments
No segmental information is provided on geographical basis as the activities of the Group are conducted wholly in Malaysia.
The following table provides an analysis of revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by operating segments
of the Group:
			
Property
Construction
Trading
development
2018
RM
RM
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

REVENUE
Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

173,937,626
(350,953)

31,662,167
(38,948)

82,639,030
-

3,000,000
(3,000,000)

291,238,823
(3,389,901)

Revenue from
external customers

173,586,673

31,623,219

82,639,030

-

287,848,922

RESULTS
Segment results
Finance costs
Interest income

4,041,818
(100,668)
232,399

979,153
5,812

(1,815,899)
(95,914)
190,130

(266,737)
31,492

2,938,335
(196,582)
459,833

Profit before tax

4,173,549

984,965

(1,721,683)

(235,245)

3,201,586

(686,121)

(178,757)

76,396

(193)

(788,675)

-

-

-

1,268,057

1,268,057

ASSETS
Segment assets

223,478,817

12,196,744

94,898,294

9,427,010

340,000,865

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

115,186,633

8,412,128

3,757,848

1,572,758

128,929,367

515,421

-

316,564

-

831,985

(330,589)

-

(75,097)

-

(405,686)

Tax expense
Share of results of a joint venture,
net of tax

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions to non-current assets
other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
The following table provides an analysis of revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by operating segments
of the Group (continued):
			
Property
Construction
Trading
development
2017
RM
RM
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

REVENUE
Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

144,290,123
-

17,274,836
-

6,482,915
-

3,000,000
(3,000,000)

171,047,874
(3,000,000)

Revenue from
external customers

144,290,123

17,274,836

6,482,915

-

168,047,874

RESULTS
Segment results
Finance costs
Interest income

5,699,940
(15,550)
342,277

447,195
3,467

(2,160,890)
(87,834)
291,519

(615,009)
3,710

3,371,236
(103,384)
640,973

Profit before tax

6,026,667

450,662

(1,957,205)

(611,299)

3,908,825

Tax expense

(1,704,458)

(110,086)

331,296

-

(1,483,248)

-

-

-

(75,143)

(75,143)

143,741,430

7,285,167

161,002,546

8,932,951

320,962,094

92,401,748

4,906,759

12,049,231

1,613,351

110,971,089

1,159,100

-

1,650,971

-

2,810,071

(842,003)

-

(73,600)

-

(915,603)

Share of results of a joint venture,
net of tax
ASSETS
Segment assets
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
OTHER INFORMATION
Additions to non-current assets
other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Major Customers

Revenue from two (2) (2017: three (3)) customers in the construction segment and one (1) (2017: Nil) customer in the
property development segment represent approximately RM179,494,622 (2017: RM122,607,402) of the Group’s revenue.
The following are major customers with revenue equal or more than ten (10) percent of Group’s revenue:
Revenue

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E
Customer F

Segment

2018
RM

2017
RM

70,975,383
40,113,001
68,406,238

28,526,934
39,626,966
54,453,502
-

Construction
Construction
Construction
Construction
Construction
Property Development
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Balance at			
1.9.2017
Additions
Disposals
RM
RM
RM

Written
off
RM

Balance at
31.8.2018
RM

Cost
Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
		

3,680,000
338,545
121,326
110,280
3,857,402
2,565,000

30,184
6,186
16,100
477,919
-

(830,000)
-

(18,699)
-

3,680,000
350,030
127,512
126,380
3,505,321
2,565,000

10,672,553

530,389

(830,000)

(18,699)

10,354,243

Balance at Charge for the		
1.9.2017
financial year
Disposals
RM
RM
RM

Written
off
RM

Balance at
31.8.2018
RM

Accumulated depreciation
Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

73,600
290,117
93,273
71,837
2,289,108
2,565,000

73,600
24,951
6,400
11,376
289,359
-

(830,000)
-

(18,699)
-

147,200
296,369
99,673
83,213
1,748,467
2,565,000

		

5,382,935

405,686

(830,000)

(18,699)

4,939,922

Balance at				
Reclassi1.9.2016
Additions
Disposals Written off
fication
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

Balance at
31.8.2017
RM

Cost
Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
Construction in progress

348,326
107,953
116,680
2,971,666
2,565,000
2,760,000

24,073
14,112
1,981
1,118,934
920,000

(233,198)
-

(33,854)
(739)
(8,381)
-

3,680,000
(3,680,000)

3,680,000
338,545
121,326
110,280
3,857,402
2,565,000
-

		

8,869,625

2,079,100

(233,198)

(42,974)

-

10,672,553

Balance at Charge for the			
1.9.2016
financial year
Disposals
Written off
RM
RM
RM
RM

Balance at
31.8.2017
RM

Accumulated depreciation
Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

296,354
85,560
69,948
2,151,517
2,052,000

73,600
27,617
8,452
10,270
282,664
513,000

(145,073)
-

(33,854)
(739)
(8,381)
-

73,600
290,117
93,273
71,837
2,289,108
2,565,000

		

4,655,379

915,603

(145,073)

(42,974)

5,382,935
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5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Group
2018
RM

2017
RM

Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles

3,532,800
53,661
27,839
43,167
1,756,854

3,606,400
48,428
28,053
38,443
1,568,294

		

5,414,321

5,289,618

Carrying amount

(a)

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(b)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives represent common life expectancies applied in the industry within
which the Group operates. The principal annual depreciation rates are as follows:
Building
Computers
Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

(c)

2%
20% - 25%
10% - 15%
10%
10%
20%

During the financial year, the Group made the following cash payments to purchase property, plant and equipment:
Group

(d)

2018
RM

2017
RM

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Financed by term loan
Financed by hire purchase

530,389
(349,000)

2,079,100
(920,000)
(510,000)

Cash payments on purchase of property, plant and equipment

181,389

649,100

The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment of the Group under hire purchase arrangements at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group

Motor vehicles

2018
RM

2017
RM

960,938

597,162

Details of the hire purchase arrangements are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.
(e)

The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment of the Group registered in the name of a Director of the
Company, which are held in trust by the said Director, are as follows:
Group

Motor vehicles
(f)

2018
RM

2017
RM

227,200

284,000

Building with a carrying amount of RM3,532,800 (2017: RM3,606,400) has been pledged to a bank for term loan
facility granted to a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.
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6.

LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
			
			
Group
Note

Freehold
land
RM

Leasehold
land
RM

Development
costs
RM

Total
RM

Balance as at 1 September 2016		
22,000,000
Additions		
-

39,495,580
-

2,381,474
730,971

63,877,054
730,971

Balance as at 31 August 2017/
1 September 2017		
22,000,000
Additions		
Disposal
25
-

39,495,580
(16,507,715)

3,112,445
301,596
(76,732)

64,608,025
301,596
(16,584,447)

Balance as at 31 August 2018		

22,987,865

3,337,309

48,325,174

At cost

7.

22,000,000

(a)

Land held for property development is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Such land is classified as noncurrent asset when no significant development work has been carried out or where development activities are not
expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle.

(b)

Freehold land held for property development with a carrying amount of RM22,000,000 (2017: RM22,000,000) have
been pledged to a licensed bank for bank guarantee granted to a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

Unquoted equity shares, at cost
Equity loans

49,247,719
132,300,000

49,247,719
75,000,000

		

181,547,719

124,247,719

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries, which are eliminated on consolidation, are stated in the separate financial statements
of the Company at cost less impairment losses, if any.

(b)

Equity loans represent non-trade loan granted by the Company to subsidiaries for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and is intended to provide the subsidiary with a long-term source
of additional capital. It is, in substance, an addition to the Company’s investment in the subsidiary and accordingly,
is accounted for under FRS 127 Separate Financial Statements as part of the investment in the subsidiary and
measured at cost.

(c)

During the financial year, the Directors of the Company have reassessed the nature of the amounts owing by
subsidiaries and determined that a portion of the outstanding balance amounting to RM132,300,000 (2017:
RM75,000,000) shall constitute equity loans to the subsidiaries, which are unsecured, interest free and settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, and are considered to be part of the Company’s net
investment in providing the subsidiaries with a long term source of additional capital.
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7.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(d)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Name of Company
		
		

Equity interest
2018
2017
%
%

Principal activities

Asas Jiwa Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Property development and investment holding

Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Turnkey contractor and property development

Melati Ehsan Capital Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Money lending business

Melati Ehsan Consolidated Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Property development and turnkey contractor

Melati Ehsan Trading Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
Trading of construction materials and rental of
					machineries
Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Turnkey contractor

All the subsidiaries are incorporated in Malaysia and audited by BDO.
8.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
(a)

Investment in a joint venture
Group
		
		

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

Unquoted equity shares, at cost
Share of results

2,450,000
1,031,343

2,450,000
(236,714)

2,450,000
-

2,450,000
-

		

3,481,343

2,213,286

2,450,000

2,450,000

(i)

2017
RM

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. These parties are known as joint venturers.
In the separate financial statements of the Company, an investment in a joint venture is stated at cost. The
Group recognises its interest in a joint venture as an investment in a joint venture and accounts for that
investment using the equity method.

(ii)

The details of the joint venture are as follows:

Joint venture
		
B.H.O. Melati Sdn. Bhd.

Group/Company
effective interest
in equity
2018
2017
%
%
49

49

Principal activities
Construction and asset management services

The joint venture is incorporated in Malaysia and audited by BDO.
(iii)

B.H.O. Melati Sdn. Bhd., the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is an unlisted separate
structured entity whose quoted market price is not available. The contractual arrangement provides the Group
with only the rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, with the rights to the assets and obligation for
liabilities of the joint arrangement resting primarily with B.H.O. Melati Sdn. Bhd..
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8.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(a)

Investment in a joint venture (continued)
(iv)

The summarised financial information of the joint venture, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,
and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:
Group
		
		

2018
RM

2017
RM

56,034,052
295,262
(23,224,780)
(25,999,753)

20,721
10,198,191
(5,702,002)

7,104,781

4,516,910

49%

49%

3,481,343

2,213,286

49,310,646
(44,359,786)

-

Gross profits
Other income
Other expenses

4,950,860
730
(1,323,621)

(153,354)

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Taxation

3,627,969
(1,040,098)

(153,354)
-

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year

2,587,871

(153,354)

Share of profit/(loss) by the Group for the financial year

1,268,057

(75,143)

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets
Proportion of the ownership of the Group
Carrying amount
Results
Revenue
Cost of sales

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at 31 August 2018 and 31 August
2017.
(b)

Investment in a joint operation
(i)

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. These parties are known as
joint operators.

(ii)

The details of the joint operation are as follows:

Joint operation
		

Group
effective interest
in equity
2018
2017
%
%

Principal activity

Konsortium Syarikat
Bina Darulaman Berhad Pembinaan Kery Sdn Bhd.
(“BDB-PKSB”)
45
45
Construction of a 2-lane single carriageway road from
				 Durian Burung to Kupang in Kedah (“TEKIH Project”)
TEKIH Project was awarded by Jabatan Kerja Raya Malaysia to the joint operation. Thereafter, the joint
operation sub-contracted the said project to Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary of the Company.
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8.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b)

Investment in a joint operation (continued)
(iii)

The following amounts represent the Group’s proportionate share of assets and liabilities of the unincorporated
joint operation and have been included in the financial statements under their respective classification
categories:
		
		

2018
RM

2017
RM

Current assets
Bank balances

-

851

Current liabilities
Other payables

-

(900)

Net current liabilities

-

(49)

The joint operation had no contingent liabilities and capital commitment as at 31 August 2018 and 31 August 2017.
9.

GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION
Group

Carrying amount

2018
RM

2017
RM

506,455

506,455

(a)

Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset at the acquisition date and is initially measured at cost.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(b)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that is
expected to benefit from the business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated mainly to
the construction division.

(c)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined using the value-in-use basis, involving cash flow projections
calculations derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.

(d)

Value-in-use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the CGU
and management’s assessment of future trends based on the following key assumptions:
(i)

Revenue is projected based on specific projects with percentages of completion ranging from 46% to 100%
at the end of year five.

(ii)

Projected profit margins ranging from 4% to 26%.

(iii)

Pre-tax discount rate of 8.40% was applied to the cash flow projections. The discount rate was estimated
based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use, the management is of the view that no reasonably possible change
in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying amount of the goodwill to materially differ from its
recoverable amount.
(e)

During the financial year, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and no impairment loss is required
as the recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount.
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10.

DEFERRED TAX
(a)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are made up of the following:
Group
		
		

2018
RM

2017
RM

Balance as at 1 September
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 27)

(1,077,248)
44,434

(219,437)
(857,811)

Balance as at 31 August

(1,032,814)

(1,077,248)

Presented after appropriate offsetting:
Group
		
		

(b)

2018
RM

2017
RM

Deferred tax assets, net
Deferred tax liabilities, net

(2,484,097)
1,451,283

(2,477,248)
1,400,000

		

(1,032,814)

(1,077,248)

The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year prior to offsetting are
as follows:
Deferred tax assets of the Group
		
		
		
		
		
		

Unused tax
losses and
unabsorbed
capital
allowances
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

(237,794)
(498,577)

(1,402,662)
(338,215)

(1,640,456)
(836,792)

At 31 August 2017/1 September 2017
Recognised in profit or loss

(736,371)
(1,619,429)

(1,740,877)
1,612,580

(2,477,248)
(6,849)

At 31 August 2018

(2,355,800)

(128,297)

(2,484,097)

Property,
plant and
equipment
RM

Land held
for property
development
RM

Total
RM

At 1 September 2016
Recognised in profit or loss

21,019
(21,019)

1,400,000
-

1,421,019
(21,019)

At 31 August 2017/1 September 2017
Recognised in profit or loss

51,283

1,400,000
-

1,400,000
51,283

At 31 August 2018

51,283

1,400,000

1,451,283

At 1 September 2016
Recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group
		
		
		
		

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against which
the losses, capital allowances and deductible temporary differences could be utilised. Management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that could be recognised, based on the likely timing and
extent of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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10.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(c)

The amounts of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in the statements of
financial position are as follows:
Group

Unused tax losses

2018
RM

2017
RM

38,187

38,187

Deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries had not been recognised in respect of this item as it is not probable that
future taxable profits of certain subsidiaries would be available against which the deductible temporary differences
could be utilised.
11.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS
			
			
Group
Note

Leasehold
land
RM

Development
costs
RM

Total
RM

Balance as at 1 September 2016		
16,868,877
Additions		
-

35,740,849
1,802,735

52,609,726
1,802,735

Balance as at 31 August 2017/ 1 September 2017		
16,868,877
Additions		
Close out of completed projects		
(10,351,680)
Transfer to inventories		
(1,394,127)

37,543,584
6,284,166
(25,784,108)
(7,014,061)

54,412,461
6,284,166
(36,135,788)
(8,408,188)

Balance as at 31 August 2018		

5,123,070

11,029,581

16,152,651

Balance as at 1 September 2016		
Recognised during the financial year
25
Balance as at 31 August 2017/ 1 September 2017		
Recognised during the financial year
25
Close out of completed projects		

(2,808,836)
(772,021)
(3,580,857)
(6,770,823)
10,351,680

(14,914,886)
(4,800,759)
(19,715,645)
(6,068,463)
25,784,108

(17,723,722)
(5,572,780)
(23,296,502)
(12,839,286)
36,135,788

Balance as at 31 August 2018		

-

-

-

Property development costs as at 31 August 2017		 13,288,020

17,827,939

31,115,959

Property development costs as at 31 August 2018		

11,029,581

16,152,651

Cumulative property development costs

Cumulative costs recognised in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

5,123,070

The portion of property development costs where significant development work has been undertaken and which is
expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle is considered as a current asset.
12.

INVENTORIES
Group

At cost
Completed properties held for sale

2018
RM

2017
RM

10,061,637

46,546,240
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12.

13.

INVENTORIES (continued)
(a)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(b)

Completed properties held for sale consist of cost associated with the acquisition of land, direct costs and
appropriate proportions of common costs attributable to developing the properties to completion.

(c)

During the financial year, inventories of the Group recognised as cost of sales amounted to RM45,027,094 (2017:
Nil).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
		 2018
Note
RM

2017
RM

Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

Non current asset
Other receivable
Amount owing by a joint venture		

5,778,695

-

5,778,695

-

91,040,127
13,737,042

-

-

1,676,815

-

-

			
211,548,592
Less: Impairment loss		
(4,336,813)

106,453,984
(4,336,813)

-

-

			
207,211,779

102,117,171

-

-

Other receivables
Amounts owing by subsidiaries		
Amount owing by a joint venture		
Advances to subcontractors		
183,022
Deposits		
14,402,347
Other receivables		
2,025,748

2,813,000
1,273,612
18,512,920
1,844,840

122,463
15,000
-

56,614,971
2,813,000
15,000
-

			 16,611,117
Less: Impairment loss		
-

24,444,372
(450,000)

137,463
-

59,442,971
-

			 16,611,117

23,994,372

137,463

59,442,971

Loans and receivables		 223,822,896
Prepayments		
1,568,542

126,111,543
2,073,018

137,463
-

59,442,971
-

			

128,184,561

137,463

59,442,971

Current assets
Trade receivables
Receivables		
196,150,573
Amounts due from contract customers
14
12,536,019
Accrued billings in respect of
property development		
2,862,000

225,391,438

(a)

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(b)

Trade receivables
(i)

Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts receivable from customers in respect of progress billings made
with regards to construction contracts undertaken and amounts receivable from housing buyers. They are
recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
The credit period granted on construction contracts and housing buyers of the Group ranges from 14 to 180
(2017: 14 to 180) days. However, extension of the credit period is assessed and approved on a case by case
basis.
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13.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b)

Trade receivables (continued)
(ii)

Included in trade receivables is an amount of RM19,490,876 (2017: RM12,061,390), representing retention
sums for contract works as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.
The retention sums are unsecured, interest free and are expected to be collected as follows:
Group

Within one (1) year

2018
RM

2017
RM

19,490,876

12,061,390

(iii)

Included in trade receivables are amounts of RM127,120,243 (2017: RM73,019,934) owing by related parties,
which are unsecured, interest free and subject to normal trade terms.

(iv)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group are as follows:
Group
2018
RM

2017
RM

106,719,086

53,170,098

Past due, not impaired
1 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
More than 120 days

10,335,084
6,985,353
5,643,087
4,273,229
73,255,940

1,221,919
1,673,262
476,466
193,368
45,382,058

		
Past due and impaired

100,492,693
4,336,813

48,947,073
4,336,813

		

211,548,592

106,453,984

Neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records
with the Group.
None of the trade receivables of the Group that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated
during the financial year.
Trade receivables that past due but not impaired
Based on the Group’s past experience and owing to the reason that no loss event had occurred to these
customers, such as significant financial difficulties, no impairment was made in respect of these past due
trade receivables. These receivables are unsecured in nature.
Trade receivables that past due and impaired
Trade receivables of the Group that are past due and impaired at the end of the reporting period have been
individually impaired.

Group
Trade receivables, gross
Less: Impairment loss
		

Individually impaired
2018
2017
RM
RM
4,336,813
(4,336,813)

4,336,813
(4,336,813)

-

-
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13.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b)

Trade receivables (continued)
(iv)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group are as follows (continued):
The movement of impairment losses in respect of trade receivables during the financial year are as follows:
Group
2018
RM

2017
RM

4,336,813

4,336,813

Trade receivables
At beginning/end of the financial year

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to
those debtors that exhibit significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables
are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
The Group makes impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment is applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The Group specifically analyses historical bad debts, customer concentration,
customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when making
a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the impairment of receivables. Where the expectations differ from
the original estimates, the differences would impact the carrying amount of receivables.
(c)

Other receivables
(i)

Amount owing by a joint venture mainly arose from advances and payments made on behalf, which are
unsecured and interest free. The carrying amount is recognised based on its net present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at a rate of 8.40% (2017: Nil) per annum. The discount rate was estimated based
on the weighted average cost of capital of the Group.

(ii)

Amounts owing by subsidiaries mainly arose from advances and payments made on behalf, which are
unsecured, interest free and repayable upon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(iii)

Advances granted by the Group to third party subcontractors are unsecured, interest free and repayable upon
demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(iv)

Included in deposits of the Group and of the Company is an amount of RM15,000 (2017: RM15,000) owing by
a related party, which is unsecured, interest free and repayable upon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(v)

Included in deposits of the Group are deposit amounting to RM5,000,000 (2017: RM5,000,000) paid in
respect of a joint venture with Selgate Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (f.k.a. PKNS Holdings Sdn. Bhd.) and deposit
amounting to RM7,600,000 (2017: RM7,600,000) paid in respect for purchase of three (3) parcels of leasehold
land held under H.S.(D) 54886, 54887 and 54888 for PT No. 4505, 4506 and 4507, Mukim Bandar Selayang,
District Gombak, State of Selangor.

(vi)

The movement of impairment loss in respect of other receivables during the financial year are as follows:
Group
2018
RM

2017
RM

450,000
(450,000)

450,000
-

-

450,000

Other receivables
At 1 September
Reversal of impairment loss
At 31 August

Other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to
those debtors that exhibit significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables
are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
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13.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d)

Trade and other receivables are denominated in RM.

(e)

The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the industry sector profiles of its trade receivables
on an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of each
reporting period is as follows:
Group
2018

2017

		
RM

% of		
total
RM

% of
total

By industry sectors
Construction
Trading
Property development

155,902,487
9,341,781
41,967,511

75.24
4.51
20.25

93,165,161
5,945,029
3,006,981

91.23
5.82
2.95

		

207,211,779

100.00

102,117,171

100.00

At the end of each reporting period:

14.

(i)

18% (2017: 9%) of the Group’s trade receivables are due from one (1) (2017: one (1)) major customer while
61% (2017: 72%) are due from related parties.

(ii)

89% (2017: 95%) of the Company’s other receivables are amounts owing by subsidiaries.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT CUSTOMERS
Group
			
		
Note

2018
RM

2017
RM

Aggregate costs incurred to date		
Add: Attributable profits		

1,225,836,696
137,266,812

1,068,134,236
129,124,330

			
Elimination due to completion of projects during the year		

1,363,103,508
(304,718,672)

1,197,258,566
(8,092,684)

Total		

1,058,384,836

1,189,165,882

Less: Progress billings		
Elimination due to completion of projects during the year		

(1,391,633,125) (1,206,022,832)
304,718,672
8,092,684

			

(1,086,914,453 ) (1,197,930,148)

			

(28,529,617)

(8,764,266)

Represented by:
Amounts due from contract customers
Amounts due to contract customers

12,536,019
(41,065,636)

13,737,042
(22,501,308)

			

(28,529,617)

(8,764,266)

Contract costs recognised as an expense during the year

25

165,069,360

128,622,713

Retention sums on contracts, included under trade receivables

13(b)(ii)

19,490,876

12,061,390

Retention sums on contracts, included under trade payables

22(b)(ii)

25,562,403

25,056,819

13
22
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15.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

Cash at banks
Fixed deposits with licensed banks

11,464,308
8,344,375

4,557,349
33,210,482

239,621
2,000,000

628,342
2,500,908

		

19,808,683

37,767,831

2,239,621

3,129,250

(a)

Fixed deposits of the Group and of the Company have maturity periods ranging from 1 to 31 (2017: 1 to 31) days
with weighted average effective interest rate of 3.05% and 2.75% (2017: 2.80% and 2.65%) per annum respectively.

(b)

Included in fixed deposits of the Group is an amount of RM2,039,219 (2017: Nil) pledged to a licensed bank as
security for credit facilities granted to a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

(c)

As at the end of the financial year, included in the cash and bank balances of the Group is an amount of RM969,058
(2017: RM951,188) held under the Housing Development Account pursuant to Section 7A of the Housing
Development (Control and Licensing) Act, 1966 (as amended by the Housing Development (Housing Development
Account) (Amendment) Regulations, 2015). The utilisation of this balance is restricted. Before completion of the
housing development and fulfilling all relevant obligations to the purchasers, the cash can only be withdrawn from
such account for the purpose of completing the particular projects concerned.

(d)

Cash and bank balances are denominated in RM.

(e)

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end of
the reporting period:
Group

(f)

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

Cash and bank balances

19,808,683

37,767,831

2,239,621

3,129,250

Less:
Fixed deposits pledged with a licensed bank

(2,039,219)

-

-

-

		

17,769,464

37,767,831

2,239,621

3,129,250

At the end of the reporting period, the interest rate profile of the cash and bank balances was:
Group

Fixed rate

2018
RM

2017
RM

8,344,375

33,210,482

Company
2018
RM
2,000,000

2017
RM

2,500,908

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting period is not presented as
change in interest rates would not materially affect profit or loss.
16.

SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
2018
Number		Number
of shares
RM
of shares
Issued and fully paid up ordinary shares

120,000,434

60,000,217

120,000,434

2017
RM
60,000,217
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16.

17.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(a)

The owners of the parent are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company and are entitled
to one (1) vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu with regard to the
residual assets of the Company.

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the number of outstanding shares in issue after setting off against treasury shares
is 119,169,134 (2017: 119,376,434).

TREASURY SHARES
The shareholders of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 27 February
2018, approved the Company’s plan to repurchase up to 10% of the issued and paid-up ordinary share capital of the
Company. The Directors of the Company are committed to enhance the value of the Company to its shareholders and
believed that the purchase plan is applied in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
During the financial year, the Company repurchased 207,300 (2017: 22,000) of its issued share capital from the open market
at an overall average price of RM0.67 (2017: RM0.90) per ordinary share. The total consideration including transaction
costs was RM138,954 (2017: RM19,702). The repurchase transactions were financed by internally generated funds. The
shares repurchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with the requirement of Section 127 of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia.
As at 31 August 2018, the Company held a total of 831,300 (2017: 624,000) of its 120,000,434 issued ordinary share
capital as treasury shares. Such treasury shares are being held at a carrying amount of RM708,670 (2017: RM569,716).

18.

RESERVES
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

Non-distributable
Share premium
Reverse acquisition debit

19,830,264
(34,450,921)

19,830,264
(34,450,921)

19,830,264
-

19,830,264
-

Distributable
Retained earnings

166,400,608

165,181,161

108,327,147

108,018,824

		

151,779,951

150,560,504

128,157,411

127,849,088

(a)

2017
RM

Share premium
Companies Act 2016 (“CA2016”) had come into effect on 31 January 2017. Following the adoption of CA2016, the
share premium account will now be merged with the share capital of the Company. Notwithstanding that, Section
618 of CA2016 provides a transitional period of twenty four (24) months to utilise the share premium account.
Therefore, the Company has not consolidated the share premium account into share capital until the expiry of the
transitional period.

(b)

Reverse acquisition debit
Reverse acquisition debit arose from the reverse acquisition of the Company by Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd. (“BMSB”)
in 2007, as follows:
Group
RM
Paid-up share capital of the Company immediately before reverse acquisition
Shares issued by the Company to acquire BMSB

2
34,450,919

Adjustment taken to reverse acquisition debit

34,450,921
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19.

BORROWINGS
Group
			
		
Note

2018
RM

2017
RM

1,197,184
244,709

1,613,426
237,187

1,441,893

1,850,613

14,810,777
289,416

402,208
163,620

15,100,193

565,828

16,007,961
534,125

2,015,634
400,807

16,542,086

2,416,441

Non-current liabilities
Term loans
Hire purchase payables

20
21

			
Current liabilities
Term loans
Hire purchase payables

20
21

			
Total borrowings
Term loans
Hire purchase payables

20
21

			
(a)

Borrowings are classified as other financial liabilities, and are measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method.

(b)

Borrowings are denominated in RM.

(c)

The fair value of the borrowings of the Group are categorised as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. There is no
transfer between levels in the hierarchy during the financial year.

(d)

Borrowings that are not carried at fair values and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
values are as follows:
2018

2017

Carrying
amount
RM

Level 2
Fair value
RM

Carrying
amount
RM

Level 2
Fair value
RM

534,125

464,829

400,807

383,787

Group
Hire-purchase payables

The fair values of hire purchase payables are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at market
incremental lending rate for similar types of instruments available to the Group at the end of the reporting period.
(e)

The following table sets out the carrying amounts, the weighted average effective interest rates as at the end of each
reporting period and the remaining maturities of the borrowings of the Group that are exposed to interest rate risk:
		
		
		
Group
		
		

Weighted
average		
effective
Within
interest rate
one (1)
per annum
year
%
RM

Within
one (1)
to two
(2) years
RM

Within
two (2) to
five (5)
years
RM

More than
five (5)
years
RM

Total
RM

31 August 2018
Term loans
Floating rates

4.95%

14,810,777

440,103

757,081

-

16,007,961

Hire purchase payables
Fixed rates

4.44%

289,416

180,137

64,572

-

534,125
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19.

BORROWINGS (continued)
(e)

The following table sets out the carrying amounts, the weighted average effective interest rates as at the end of each
reporting period and the remaining maturities of the borrowings of the Group that are exposed to interest rate risk:
(continued)
		
		
		
Group
		
		

Weighted
average		
effective
Within
interest rate
one (1)
per annum
year
%
RM

Within
one (1)
to two
(2) years
RM

Within
two (2) to
five (5)
years
RM

More than
five (5)
years
RM

Total
RM

31 August 2017

(f)

Term loans
Floating rates

4.85%

402,208

422,155

1,191,271

-

2,015,634

Hire purchase payables
Fixed rates

4.84%

163,620

175,587

61,600

-

400,807

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate borrowings as at the end of the reporting period is not presented as fixed rate
instruments are not affected by changes in interest rates.
Sensitivity analysis for the floating rate borrowings as at the end of the reporting period, assuming all other variables
remain constant is as follow:
Group

Effects of 100 basis points changes to profit after tax
- Increase by 1.0% (2017: 1.0%)
- Decrease by 1.0% (2017: 1.0%)
(g)

2018
RM

2017
RM

(121,661)
121,661

(15,319)
15,319

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the borrowings as at the end of the reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:
On demand
or within
one (1) year
RM

One (1) to
five (5) years
RM

Over five (5)
years
RM

Total
RM

Term loans
Hire purchase payables

15,634,004
306,564

1,281,070
251,564

-

16,915,074
558,128

		

15,940,568

1,532,634

-

17,473,202

Term loans
Hire purchase payables

491,112
182,964

1,761,067
241,996

-

2,252,179
424,960

		

674,076

2,003,063

-

2,677,139

Group
2018

2017
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20.

TERM LOANS
(a)

Term loan I
This term loan with a carrying amount of RM1,615,583 was obtained by a subsidiary, Melati Ehsan Consolidated
Sdn. Bhd. to finance the purchase of one unit of 4-storey terrace house known as Countryard Home in Emerald Bay
Puteri Harbour.
The term loan is repayable over 60 monthly installments of RM40,926 each commencing on March 2017.
The term loan is secured by:
(i)

charge over the said property with a carrying amount of RM3,532,800 (2017: RM3,606,400) as disclosed in
Note 5(f) to the financial statements; and

(ii)

corporate guarantee in favour of the bank by the Company.

The term loan bears an average interest rate of 4.99% (2017: 4.85%) per annum.
(b)

Term loan II
This term loan with a carrying amount of RM14,392,378 was obtained by a subsidiary, Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.
to part finance 80% of construction and its related cost of Perumahan Penjawat Awam Malaysia (PPAM) Project in
Sentul, KL.
The term loan is repayable from facilitation fund proceeds and sales proceed from PPAM project and final repayment
shall be made at the end of 36th months from the date of the first release or at the end of the tenure of PPAM project,
whichever is earlier.
The term loan is secured by corporate guarantee in favour of the bank by the Company.
The term loan bears an average interest rate of 4.94% (2017: Nil) per annum.

21.

HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES
Group
			
		
Note

2018
RM

2017
RM

Minimum hire purchase payments
- not later than one (1) year		
- later than one (1) year but not later than five (5) years		

306,564
251,564

182,964
241,996

Total minimum hire purchase payments		
Less: Future interest charges		

558,128
(24,003)

424,960
(24,153)

Present value of hire purchase payments		

534,125

400,807

Repayable as follows:
Current liabilities
- not later than one (1) year

19

289,416

163,620

Non-current liabilities
- later than one (1) year but not later than five (5) years

19

244,709

237,187

534,125

400,807

			

The hire purchase facilities of the Group are secured by a charge over the property, plant and equipment of the Group as
disclosed in Note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (673293-X)
Annual Report 2018

69

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 August 2018

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

63,179,911

64,401,564

-

-

41,065,636

1,774,871
22,501,308

-

-

104,245,547

88,677,743

-

-

Amounts owing to subsidiaries
Deposits received
Third parties
Accruals

245,000
4,445,182
1,935,269

248,500
10,248,392
7,380,013

4,554,782
7,758
164,000

1,800,000
11,281
201,070

		

6,625,451

17,876,905

4,726,540

2,012,351

		

110,870,998

106,554,648

4,726,540

2,012,351

Note

2017
RM

Trade payables
Third parties
Progress billings in respect of
property development
Amounts due to contract customers

14

		
Other payables

(a)

Trade and other payables are classified as other financial liabilities, and measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(b)

Trade payables

(c)

(i)

Trade payables arose from trade purchases and ongoing work-in-progress. The credit period granted to the
Group ranges from 30 to 90 (2017: 30 to 90) days from date of invoice whereas retention sums are payable
upon expiry of the defect liability periods.

(ii)

Included in trade payables is an amount of RM25,562,403 (2017: RM25,056,819), representing retention
sums for contract works as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Other payables
(i)

Other payables comprise mainly advances from contract customers and accruals made in respect of
construction costs incurred.

(ii)

Amounts owing to subsidiaries mainly arose from advances received and payments made on behalf, which
are unsecured, interest free and payable upon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(iii)

Included in accruals of the Group was provision for liquidated damages. Details are as follows:
Group

At beginning of the financial year
Additions during the financial year
Paid during the financial year
At end of the financial year

2018
RM

2017
RM

6,972,723
397,412
(7,370,135)

5,702,628
1,270,095
-

-

6,972,723

(d)

Trade and other payables are denominated in RM.

(e)

The maturity profile of the trade and other payables (excluding progress billings in respect of property development
and retention sums for contract works) of the Group and of the Company at the end of reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations are payable on demand or within one (1) year.
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23.

COMMITMENTS
(a)

Operating lease commitments
The Group and the Company as lessee
The Group and the Company had entered into operating lease arrangements for ofﬁce premise and residential units
under operating leases for a term ranging from one (1) to three (3) years, with an option to renew the leases. None
of these leases include contingent rent. At the end of the year, the Group and the Company have aggregate future
minimum lease commitments and categorised as follows:
Group

(b)

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

Not later than one (1) year
Later than one (1) year and not
later than five (5) years

45,000

159,000

45,000

60,000

-

45,000

-

45,000

		

45,000

204,000

45,000

105,000

Capital commitments
Group

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in respect of :
- purchase of land held for property development

24.

2018
RM

2017
RM

70,135,849

70,135,849

REVENUE
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

Construction contracts
Sales of trading inventories
Sale of land held for property development
Property development
Sale of completed properties
Rental of machinery
Dividend from a subsidiary

173,586,673
31,594,569
17,826,760
17,735,312
47,076,958
28,650
-

144,290,123
16,992,543
6,482,915
282,293
-

3,000,000

3,000,000

		

287,848,922

168,047,874

3,000,000

3,000,000

(a)

2017
RM

Construction contracts
Profits from contract works are recognised on a percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is
determined on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date against total estimated costs
where the outcome of the project can be estimated reliably.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.
When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the progress billings issued,
the estimated total construction revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the construction projects revenue
and determination of liquidated damages. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience
and by relying on the work of specialists.
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24.

REVENUE (continued)
(b)

Sales of trading inventories
Revenue from sale of trading inventories is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
trading inventories have been transferred to the customer and where the Group does not have continuing managerial
involvement over the trading inventories, which coincides with the delivery of trading inventories and acceptance
by customers.

(c)

Sale of land held for property development
Sale of land held for property development is recognised when the risks and rewards associated with ownership
transfers to the land purchaser.

(d)

Property development
Property development revenue is recognised in respect of all development units that have been sold. Revenue
recognition commences when the sale of the development unit is effected, upon the commencement of development
and construction activities and when the financial outcome can be reliably estimated. The attributable portion of
property development cost is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of such revenue and expenses recognised is determined by reference to the stage of completion of
development activity at the end of each reporting period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total property
development cost.
When the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, the property development
revenue is recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred that is probable to be recoverable
and the property development costs on the development units sold are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
Any expected loss on a development project is recognised as an expense immediately, including costs to be
incurred over the defects liability period.
Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the property development
costs incurred, the estimated total property development revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the
development projects. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience and by relying on
the work of specialists.

(e)

Sale of completed properties
Sale of completed property units is recognised when the risks and rewards associated with ownership transfers to
the property purchasers.

(f)

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term of an ongoing lease.

(g)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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25.

COST OF SALES
Group

26.

			
		
Note

2018
RM

2017
RM

Construction contracts
14
Purchase of trading inventories		
Land held for property development
6
Property development
11
Completed properties
12(c)
Rental of machinery		

165,069,360
30,615,874
16,584,447
12,839,286
45,027,094
28,650

128,622,713
16,113,910
5,572,780
282,293

			

270,164,711

150,591,696

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the profit before tax is arrived at:
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

129,000
5,000

127,000
7,000

30,000
3,000

28,000
5,000

21,922
174,660
-

15,550
87,834
16,427

-

-

133,300
1,011,595
3,686,683

141,000
773,167

1,011,595
-

-

8,000
459,833

640,973

31,492

908

After charging:
Auditors’ remuneration:
- statutory audit
- non-statutory audit
Finance costs:
- hire purchase interest
- term loan
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Rental of premise payable:
- to a third party
Discounting on amount due from a joint venture
Rectification works
And crediting:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest income from fixed deposits

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
27.

TAXATION
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

840,000
(95,759)

2,285,000
56,059

193

-

744,241

2,341,059

193

-

(20,137)
64,571

(967,876)
110,065

-

-

		

44,434

(857,811)

-

-

		

788,675

1,483,248

193

-

Note
Current tax expense based on profit
for the financial year
(Over)/Under provision in prior years
		
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Under provision in prior years

2017
RM

10
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27.

TAXATION (continued)
(a)

Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%) of the estimated taxable profits for
the fiscal year.

(b)

Numerical reconciliation of taxation applicable to profit before tax at the applicable statutory tax rates to the taxation
at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as follows:
Group
2017
RM

3,201,586

3,908,825

1,501,980

2,464,101

Tax at Malaysian statutory rate at 24%
(2017: 24%)

768,381

938,118

360,475

591,384

Tax effects in respect of:
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Non-allowable expenses
Non-taxable income

161,286
(109,804)

25
378,981
-

359,525
(720,000)

128,616
(720,000)

		
(Over)/Under provision in prior years:
- Income tax
- Deferred tax

819,863

1,317,124

-

-

(95,759)
64,571

56,059
110,065

193
-

-

		

788,675

1,483,248

193

-

Profit before tax

28.

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
(a)

Basic
Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year
attributable to equity owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, after taking into consideration of treasury shares held by the Company.
Group
Profit attributable to owners of the parent (RM)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)

(b)

2018

2017

2,412,911

2,425,577

119,290,412

119,390,642

2.02

2.03

Diluted
Diluted earnings per ordinary share for the financial years 2018 and 2017 are same as the basic earnings per
ordinary share as there are no potentially dilutive ordinary shares.
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29.

DIVIDENDS
Company
2018
RM

2017
RM

First and final single-tier dividend of 1.00 sen per ordinary share
for the financial year ended 31 August 2017, paid on 19 March 2018

1,193,464

-

First and final single-tier dividend of 1.75 sen per ordinary share
for the financial year ended 31 August 2016, paid on 17 March 2017.

-

2,089,455

1,193,464

2,089,455

		

The Directors proposed a first and final single-tier dividend of 1.00 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM1,191,691
in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2018, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. This
dividend, if approved by shareholders, will be accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year
ending 31 August 2018.
30.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Group
2018
RM

2017
RM

Salaries, wages and bonuses
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Other employee benefits

6,580,120
725,136
253,942

6,194,607
685,307
267,337

		

7,559,198

7,147,251

Included in the employee benefits of the Group are Executive Directors’ remuneration amounting to RM2,034,475 (2017:
RM2,015,261).
31.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a)

Identities of related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties could be
individuals or other parties.
The Company has controlling related party relationship with its subsidiaries.
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the related parties and their relationship with the
Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:
Name of related parties

Relationship

(i)

Bonus Focus (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, Puan Sri Datin Teng
Siew Kean, who is the spouse of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, are
Directors and shareholders.

(ii)

Maris Development Sdn. Bhd.

Company in which Radzulai Bin Yahaya is a Director and shareholder.

(iii)

Sentul Murni Sdn. Bhd.

Company in which Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, who is the spouse
of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is a Director.
A wholly-owned subsidiary of Paramount Venue Sdn. Bhd. in which
Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, is also a major shareholder of the
Company via her substantial interest in Paramount Venue Sdn. Bhd..
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31.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(a)

Identities of related parties (continued)
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the related parties and their relationship with the
Company and its subsidiaries are as follows (continued):
Name of related parties

Relationship

(iv)

Company in which Tan Sri Dato Yap Suan Chee, Radzulai Bin Yahaya
and Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, who is the spouse of Tan Sri Dato’
Yap Suan Chee are Directors.

Mega Legacy (M) Sdn. Bhd.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Mega Legacy Equity Sdn. Bhd. in which
Yap Wei Sam, who is the son of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, is a
Director and together with Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, are major
shareholders of the Company via their substantial interest in Mega
Legacy Equity Sdn. Bhd..

(b)

(v)

Bayu Mantap Sdn. Bhd.

Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is a Director and
shareholder while Yap Wei Sam and Yap Wei Nie, who are the children
of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee are the directors, and Puan Sri Datin
Teng Siew Kean, who is the spouse of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, is a
Director and together with Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee are shareholders
of Samwell Sdn. Bhd. which is a major shareholder.

(vi)

Konsortium Melati Ehsan (M) Joint venture of Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd., a company in which Tan
Sdn. Bhd. - Desa Purnama Sdn. Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Radzulai Bin Yahaya are Directors and
Bhd.
shareholders while Yap Wei Sam, who is the son of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap
Suan Chee, is a Director.

(vii)

Melati Ehsan Development Sdn. Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Radzulai Bin
Bhd.
Yahaya, are Directors and shareholders while Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew
Kean, who is the spouse of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, is a Director.

(viii)

Kuasa Ehsan Development Sdn. Company in which Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean, who is the spouse of
Bhd.
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is a Director and shareholder.

(ix)

Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Radzulai Bin
Yahaya, are Directors and shareholders while Yap Wei Sam, who is the
son of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, is a Director.

Significant related party transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the
Company had the following transactions with related parties during the financial year:
Group

Dividend income

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

2017
RM

-

-

3,000,000

3,000,000

83,552,509
60,000
1,577,168

62,767,227
60,000
-

60,000
-

60,000
-

Related parties
Progress billings receivable
Rental of premise
Sale of trading inventories

The related party transactions described above were carried out based on negotiated terms and conditions mutually
agreed with the respective related parties.
Information regarding outstanding balances with related parties as at 31 August 2018 are disclosed in Note 13 and
Note 22 to the financial statements.
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31.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(c)

Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly and indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise)
of the Group and the Company.
The remuneration of Directors during the financial year was as follows:
Group
2017
RM

110,000
2,034,475
15,967

110,000
2,015,261
15,500

110,000
-

110,000
-

		
Non-executive Directors
Fee
Other emoluments

2,160,442

2,140,761

110,000

110,000

108,000
21,000

108,000
18,000

108,000
21,000

108,000
18,000

Total

2,289,442

2,266,761

239,000

236,000

Executive Directors
Fee
Salaries and other emoluments
Benefits-in-kind

32.

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Group and Company
2018
2017
RM
RM
Secured
Guarantees given to financial institutions on credit facilities granted to subsidiaries

182,210,000

122,210,000

Group and Company
2018
2017
RM
RM
Unsecured
Guarantees given to third parties for performance in the development
agreement granted to a subsidiary
Guarantees given to third parties for performance in the construction
agreement granted to a subsidiary
Guarantees given to suppliers for credit facilities granted to a subsidiary
Guarantees given to a third party for performance in the development
agreement granted to a third party
Guarantees given to a financial institution on a credit facility
granted to a subsidiary
Guarantees given to a financial institution on credit facilities
granted to a joint venture
		

385,904,330

385,904,330

19,481,336
6,000,000

19,481,336
4,300,000

-

4,389,802

144,000,000

-

280,770,000

-

836,155,666

414,075,468
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32.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(a)

The Group and the Company designate corporate guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries
as insurance contracts as defined in FRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The Group and the Company recognise these
corporate guarantees as insurance liabilities when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of
a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group and the Company assess whether its recognised insurance liabilities,
if any, are adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If this assessment
shows that the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities is inadequate, the entire deficiency shall be recognised
in profit or loss.
Recognised insurance liabilities, if any, are only removed from the statements of financial position when, and only
when, it is extinguished via a discharge, cancellation or expiration.
The determination of treatment of contingent liabilities is based on management’s view of the expected outcome of
the contingencies for matters in the ordinary course of the business.
The Directors are of the view that the chances of the financial institutions to call upon the corporate guarantees are
remote.

33.

(b)

The secured credit facilities of the Group and of the Company are secured by way of a pledge of certain land held for
property development and fixed deposits of the Group as disclosed in Note 6(b) and Note 15(b) to the said licensed
banks.

(c)

The maturity profile of the contingent liabilities of the Group and of the Company at the end of the reporting period
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations are payable on demand or within one (1) year.

CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a)

Capital management
The primary objective of the capital management of the Group is to ensure that entities of the Group would be able
to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The overall strategy of the Group remains unchanged from that in the previous financial year.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in response to changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the financial years ended 31 August 2018 and 31 August 2017.
The Group monitors and maintains a prudent level of total debts and to ensure compliance with any externally
imposed capital requirements, if any.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is loans and borrowings divided by total capital plus loans
and borrowings. Capital represents equity attributable to the owners of the parent.
Group

Company
2018
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM

Total borrowings

16,542,086

2,416,441

-

-

Total equity
Total borrowings

211,071,498
16,542,086

209,991,005
2,416,441

187,448,958
-

187,279,589
-

Total capital

227,613,584

212,407,446

187,448,958

187,279,589

7.27%

1.14%

-

-

Gearing ratio

2017
RM
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33.

CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a)

Capital management (continued)
Pursuant to the requirements of Practice Note No. 17/2005 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Group is
required to maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than 25% of the issued and paid-up
capital (excluding treasury shares) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40,000,000. The Company has
complied with this requirement for the financial years ended 31 August 2018 and 31 August 2017.

(b)

Financial risk management
The financial risk management objective of the Group is to optimise value creation for shareholders whilst minimising
the potential adverse impact arising from fluctuations in interest rates and the unpredictability of the financial
markets.
The Group operates within an established risk management framework and clearly defined guidelines that are
regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors and does not trade in derivative financial instruments. Financial risk
management is carried out through risk review programmes, internal control systems and adherence to the Group
financial risk management policies. The Group is exposed mainly to credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk as well
as interest rate risk. Information on the management of the related exposures is detailed below.
(i)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of potential financial loss to the Group and the Company arising from the failure of a
counterparty to fulfil its obligations under a contractual agreement and include settlement or clearing risk,
concentration risk, credit assessment risk, recovery risk and credit related liquidity risk.
Cash deposits and trade receivables could give rise to credit risk which requires the loss to be recognised if
a counter party fails to perform as contracted. The primary exposure of the Group to credit risk arises from
its trade receivables. The primary exposure of the Company arises from amounts owing by a joint venture
and subsidiaries. However, the Group will extend credit to its customers based on careful evaluation of the
customers’ financial condition and credit history and ensures a large number of customers so as to limit high
credit concentration in a customer or customers from a particular market.
Exposure to credit risk
At the end of each reporting period, the maximum exposure of the Group and of the Company to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial
position.
In respect of bank balances placed with major financial institutions in Malaysia, the management believes
that the possibility of non-performance by these financial institutions is remote on the basis of their financial
strength.
The credit risks concentration profile of the Group and of the Company have been disclosed in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

(ii)

Liquidity and cash flow risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company are unable to service their cash obligations in future.
The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so
as to ensure that all operating, investing and financing needs are met. In executing liquidity risk management
strategy, the Group measures and forecasts its cash commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s activities.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining level of cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities have been disclosed in Note 19 and
Note 22 to the financial statements.
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33.

CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b)

Financial risk management (continued)
(iii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments of the Group and
of the Company would fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The exposure of the Group and of the Company to interest rate risk arises primarily from fixed deposits as
well as loans and borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate exposure by way of applying centralised
treasury management function, closely monitoring the debt market and where necessary, maintaining a
prudent mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings. This strategy allows the Group to borrow at competitive
interest rates. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge any debt obligations.
The interest rate profile and sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk have been disclosed in Note 15 and Note
19 to the financial statements.

34.

ADOPTION OF NEW FRSs AND AMENDMENTS TO FRSs
(a)

New FRSs adopted during the current financial year
The Group and the Company adopted the following Amendments of the FRS Framework that were issued by the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) during the financial year.
Title

Effective Date

Amendments to FRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to FRS 12 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2017

There is no material impact upon the adoption of these Amendments during the financial year except for the adoption
of the Amendments to FRS 107 requires entity to provide disclosures that enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. On initial application of these Amendments, entities are not required to provide comparative information
for preceding periods.
(b)

New FRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
The following are Standards and Amendments of the FRS Framework that have been issued by the MASB but have
not been early adopted by the Group and the Company:
Title

Effective Date

FRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in July 2014)
1 January 2018
Amendments to FRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
1 January 2018
Amendments to FRS 1 Annual Improvements to FRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle
See FRS 1
		
Paragraphs 39AD
		
and 39ADAA
Amendments to FRS 128 Annual Improvements to FRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle
See FRS 128
		
Paragraphs 45E
		
and 45EAA
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34.

ADOPTION OF NEW FRSs AND AMENDMENTS TO FRSs (continued)
(b)

New FRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
(continued)
The following are Standards and Amendments of the FRS Framework that have been issued by the MASB but have
not been early adopted by the Group and the Company (continued):
Title
Amendments to FRS 140 Transfers of Investment Property
		
		
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
		
		
		
Amendments to FRS 4 Applying FRS 9 Financial Instruments with FRS 4 Insurance Contracts
		
		
IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
		
		
		
Amendments to FRS 10 and FRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Effective Date
See FRS 140
Paragraphs 85G
and 85GAA
See IC
Interpretation 22
Paragraphs A1
and A1AA
See FRS 4
Paragraphs 46,
47AA and 48
See IC
Interpretation 23
Paragraphs B1
and B1AA
Deferred

The above Standards and Amendments shall be superseded upon adoption of the MFRS Framework on 1
September 2018.
(c)

New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
On 19 November 2011, the MASB issued a new approved accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRS Framework”).
The MFRS Framework is to be applied by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities that are within the scope of MFRS 141 Agriculture (MFRS 141)
and IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate (IC 15), including its parent, significant investor
and venturer (herein referred to as “Transitioning Entities”).
Transitioning Entities are allowed to defer adoption of the new MFRS Framework. Consequently, adoption of the
MFRS Framework by Transitioning Entities would be mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.
The Group and the Company fall within the scope definition of Transitioning Entities and accordingly, would be
required to prepare financial statements using the MFRS Framework in its first MFRS financial statements for
the financial year ending 31 August 2019. In presenting its first MFRS financial statements, the Group and the
Company would be required to adjust the comparative financial statements prepared under the FRS to amounts
reflecting the application of MFRS Framework. The majority of the adjustments required on transition would be
made, retrospectively, against opening retained earnings. The Group and the Company would adopt the MFRS
Framework during the financial year beginning on 1 September 2018.

Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (673293-X)
Annual Report 2018

81

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 August 2018

34.

ADOPTION OF NEW FRSs AND AMENDMENTS TO FRSs (continued)
(c)

New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
(continued)
Title

Effective Date

Amendments to MFRS 1 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle
1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
1 January 2018
Clarification to MFRS 15
1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS as issued by IASB in July 2014)
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 128 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle
1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfers of Investment Property
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
See MFRS 4
MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Paragraphs 46 and 48
MFRS 16 Leases
1 January 2019
IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 3 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 11 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 112 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 123 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 119 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 128 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
1 January 2019
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in MFRS Standards
1 January 2020
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
1 January 2021
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Deferred
The Group and the Company are in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these Standards and
Amendments, since the effects would only be observable in future financial years.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 29 November 2018

SHARE CAPITAL
Total Number of Issued Shares
Total Number of Issued Shares (without Treasury Shares)
No. of Treasury Shares Held
Issued and Fully Paid-Up Capital
Class of Shares
Voting Rights

:
:
:
:
:
:

120,000,434
119,169,134
831,300
RM60,000,217.00
Ordinary Shares
1 vote per share

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

%

NO. OF
SHARES HELD

%

16

1.66

519

0.01

100 - 1,000

161

16.66

123,681

0.10

1,001 - 10,000

507

52.48

2,638,900

2.21

10,001 - 100,000

246

25.47

7,736,600

6.49

31

3.21

25,818,857

21.67

5

0.52

82,850,577

69.52

966

100.00

119,169,134

100.00

No. of Shares

%

Less Than 100

100,001 and below 5%
5% and above
Total

LIST OF 30 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No.

Name

1.

Alpine Equity (M) Sdn. Bhd.

28,360,735

23.80

2.

Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

25,092,678

21.06

3.

Desalink Sdn. Bhd.

13,955,075

11.71

4.

Lembaga Tabung Haji

8,612,900

7.23

5.

SP Epark Konsortium Sdn. Bhd.

6,829,189

5.73

6.

Harta Mantap Sdn. Bhd.

5,398,398

4.53

7.

Competent Star Sdn. Bhd.

3,338,300

2.80

8.

Lim Tong Yong @ Lim Tong Yaim

2,181,000

1.83

9.

Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing

2,159,359

1.81

10.

Malay-Sino Formic Acid Sdn. Bhd.

2,000,000

1.68

11.

Gan Boon Hoon

1,633,000

1.37

12.

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Lim Peng Hong

1,115,800

0.94

13.

Lee Yoke Ming

995,200

0.84
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LIST OF 30 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
No.

Name

No. of Shares

%

14.

HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Teng Siew Kean
(MG0090-199)

837,700

0.70

15.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Lau Hing Kuok

681,400

0.57

16.

Teo Kwee Hock

572,600

0.48

17.

Ong Xiu Hui

562,000

0.47

18.

Public Invest Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Lee Chee Heong (M)

550,000

0.46

19.

AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Lau Hing Kuok (8046060)

395,000

0.33

20.

Pang Tin @ Pang Yon Tin

372,000

0.31

21.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Liau Sek Thoon

312,600

0.26

22.

Chen Soh Chang

310,500

0.26

23.

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary : Pledged Securities Account For Pang Sar

295,000

0.25

24.

Yeo Khee Huat

222,400

0.19

25.

Lim Peng Hong

200,000

0.17

26.

Ooi Sing Hwat

200,000

0.17

27.

Dennis Tow Jun Fye

188,000

0.16

28.

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary: CIMB Bank For Jacqueline Tiong Siew Siew (MQ0293)

176,800

0.15

29.

Rudy Ng Chong Jin

175,000

0.15

30.

Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Beneficiary: Pledged Securities Account for Tay Chun Yong (E-KLC)

173,000

0.15

107,895,634

90.54

Total
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(AS SHOWN IN THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS)
AS AT 29 NOVEMBER 2018

Name of Substantial Shareholders

No. of Ordinary Shares
Direct

%

Indirect

%

1.

Alpine Equity (M) Sdn. Bhd.

28,360,735

23.80

-

-

2.

Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

25,092,678

21.06

-

-

3.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

-

-

59,689,511 »

50.09

4.

Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean

25,092,678

#

21.06

5.

Desalink Sdn. Bhd.

-

-

6.

Radzulai Bin Yahaya

^

11.71

7.
8.
9.

837,700

0.70

13,955,075

11.71

-

-

SP Epark Konsortium Sdn. Bhd.

6,829,189

5.73

-

-

Lim Peng Hong

1,315,800

1.10

20,784,264 *

17.44

Lembaga Tabung Haji

8,612,900

7.23

-

-

Indirect

%

13,955,075

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 29 NOVEMBER 2018

Directors’ Name

No. of Ordinary Shares
Direct

%

»

50.09

1.

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee

-

-

59,689,511

2.

Radzulai Bin Yahaya

-

-

13,955,075 ^

11.71

3.

Lim Tong Hee

20,000

0.02

-

-

4.

Ir. Leong Chee Kian

-

-

-

-

5.

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya

-

-

-

-

6.

Datuk Alias Bin Ali

-

-

-

-

7.

Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

39,900

0.03

-

-

Notes :1. # Deemed interested by virtue of her substantial shareholding in Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
2. ^ Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholding in Desalink Sdn. Bhd.
3. * Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholding in Desalink Sdn. Bhd. and SP Epark Konsortium Sdn. Bhd.
4. » Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholding in Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd., Alpine Equity (M)
Sdn. Bhd., Harta Mantap Sdn. Bhd. and shareholding of his spouse.
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
as at 31 August 2018

Location

Description/
Existing use

Date of
Acquisition

Area

Tenure/Age of
building

Net book
value/ cost as
at 31 August
2018
(RM ’000)

MELATI EHSAN CONSOLIDATED SDN BHD
Lot No. 83962 PN 11853,
Lot No. 83963 PN 11854
and Lot No. 83964 PN 11851
Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development
land

25 July 2007

59,230
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
23/12/2101)

H.S. (D) 133655 to 133681
No. PT 5192 to 5218
Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development
land

25 July 2007

4,276.2
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
23/12/2101)

H.S. (D) 158144 to 158171
No. PT 14962 to 14987,
14993 and 14994
Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development
land

25 July 2007

32,173
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
22/10/2115)

H.S. (D) 155597, 155598 and 155599
No. PT 14817, 14820 and 14821
Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development
land

25 July 2007

213,092
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
26/11/2105)

No. 3, Jalan Bayu Sinaran
Emerald Bay, Puteri Harbour
79000 Iskandar Puteri, Johor

4-storey
Courtyard
Home

24 February
2014

401.4
square meters

Freehold

H.S. (D) 158009 to 158015,
158035 to 158041, 158063 to
158070, 158107 to 158143
No. PT 14827 to 14833,
14853 to 14859, 14881 to
14888, 14925 to 14961
Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development
land

25 July 2007

9,803.4
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
22/10/2115)

Mukim Pekan Pandamaran
Daerah Klang
Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan

2-storey
Shoplots

22,988

3,533

5,123

25 July 2007

2,345.3
square meters

Leasehold
(expiring on
22/10/2115)

8,408
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List of Properties
as at 31 August 2018

Location

Description/
Existing use

Date of
Acquisition

Area

Tenure/Age of
building

Geran 33336
(previously Geran 12800)
Lot No. 4802 Mukim Batu
Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan

Development
land

7 April 2008

2630.371
square meters

Freehold

Geran 36805
(previously Geran 12801)
Lot No. 4803 Mukim Batu
Daerah Kuala Lumpur
Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan

Development
land

7 April 2008

4165.597
square meters

Freehold

Net book
value/ cost as
at 31 August
2018
(RM ’000)

ASAS JIWA SDN BHD

22,000

PROXY FORM

MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD
(673293-X)
Be with ME

*I/We								*NRIC/Company No
(Full name in Block Letters)

of
being a member/members of the abovenamed Company, hereby appoint
of
or failing *him/her,
of
or failing *him/her, the CHAIRMAN of the meeting, as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Fourteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Dewan Perdana, Bukit Kiara Equestrian & Country Resort, Jalan Bukit
Kiara, off Jalan Damansara, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 27 February 2019 at 10.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof
in the manner indicated below:ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

For

Against

Ordinary Business
1.

To declare a first and final single tier dividend

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees up to RM350,000.00 for the period commencing from
the date of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting in the
year 2020.

3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ allowances of up to RM30,000.00 for the period commencing
from the date of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting in
the year 2020.

4.

Re-election of Ir. Leong Chee Kian

5.

Re-election of Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron

6.

To re-appoint Messrs BDO as Auditors of the Company

Special Business
7.

Authority to Issue Shares

8.

Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions
of a Revenue or Trading Nature

9.

Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back

10.

Proposed Retention of Datuk Alias Bin Ali as Independent Non-Executive Director

11.

Proposed Retention of Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron as Independent Non-Executive Director

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
1

Proposed Adoption of New Constitution

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against the resolution on how you wish your proxy to vote. If no specific
instruction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote at *his/her discretion.
Dated this 			

day of 				

2019.

Number of Shares
CDS Account No
Date

Signature

Notes :
1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint up to two (2) proxies (or being a corporate member, a corporate representative)
to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
2. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportions of his/her shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy.
3. The instrument appointing a proxy in the case of an individual shall be signed by the appointer or his/her attorney or in the case of a corporation executed under
its common seal or signed on behalf of the corporation by its attorney or by an officer duly authorised.
4. Where a Member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities
account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt
authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
5. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or executed must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company at No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa, 53200 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any
adjournment thereof.
6. In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 21 February 2019 shall be eligible to attend the meeting
or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.
*Delete where inapplicable

Fold Here

Affix
stamp

The Company Secretary

MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (673293-X)
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53200 Kuala Lumpur
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